CUCAكلية المدينة الجامعية بعجمانCITY UNIVERSITYCOLLEGE OF AJMAN

Catalog 2016-2017

1 September 2016

Submitted to:

The Commission for Academic Accreditation Ministry of Education • Higher Education Affairs United Arab Emirates

Foreword

This Catalog describes the administration, organization, admission requirements, academic obligations, and degree programs offered by City University College of Ajman (CUCA) and is published for informational purposes only.

It should not be considered the basis for any contract between the student and CUCA. While provisions will ordinarily be applied as stated, CUCA reserves the right to change any provision subject to and consistent with established policy and procedures for making such changes without actual notice to individual students.

Every effort will be made to keep students informed of any changes. Information on changes will be available from the Student Affairs Office. Each student is responsible for knowing the current regulations. Interpretations or explanations contrary to those expressed in this publication are not binding upon CUCA.

It is particularly important to note that each student is solely responsible for knowing the current graduation requirements for their program of study.

Document Revision Summary						
Original Publication Date	1 May 2014	Minor updates; submitted to CAA for proposed MBA program.				
Revised	1 November 2014	Updates to comply with <i>requirements</i> and <i>suggestions</i> from the CAA RLRT and MBA ERT.				
Administrative Updates	23 July 2015	Corrected internship course numbers in the curriculum listing to match study plans. Changed page position of internship and capstone course descriptions in Finance and Accounting, and Marketing, to maintain alphabetical order.				
Administrative Updates	1 October 2016	Adjustments to match administrative, course, College, and other changes over time.				
Periodic Review	1 July 2017	Minor adjustments				
Accreditation Renewal	1 September 2017					

Table of Contents

Fc	reword	2
	Vision	5
	Mission	
	Institutional Goals and Objectives	
	Core Values	
1.	College Structure	15
2.	Authorities	15
	Organization	
	CUCA Administration	
	Administration, Faculty, and Staff	
5	Degree Programs	
J.	Academic Calendar	
c	CUCA Campus	
0.		
	6.1 Facilities	
	6.2 Operating Hours and Building Use	
	6.3 General Regulations	
	6.4 Grounds Restrictions	
	6.5 Equipment and Facilities Responsibility	
	6.6 Classroom, Computer Laboratory, and Office Space Use	
	6.7 Photocopying	
	6.8 Acceptable Computer Use Policy	
	6.9 Information Security	
	6.10 Library	
	6.11 Classrooms	
7	6.12 Smoking Policy	
1.	Academic Regulations	37
	7.1 General Admission Requirements	
	7.2 Credit by Examination	
	7.3 Registration	
	7.4 Add/Drop Procedure	
	7.5 Withdrawal Procedure	
	7.6 Academic Advising	
	7.7 First Year Orientation	
	7.8 Course Load	
	7.9 Credit Hours	
	7.10 Academic Year	
	7.11 Grading System	
	7.12 Attendance	48
	7.13 Assessment and Evaluation	
	7.14 Examination Policy	
	7.15 Academic Honors	
	7.16 Good Academic Standing	
	7.17 Study Time Limitation	
	7.18 Graduation	
	7.19 Student Record Release Policy	
~	7.20 After Graduation	
8.	Financial Information	
	8.1 Tuition and Fees	
	8.2 Refunds	50
	8.3 Financial Aid	

9. Student Support Services	60
9.1 Career Services	60
9.2 Counseling	61
9.3 New Student Orientation	
9.4 Food Services	
9.5 Health Care	
9.6 Transportation	
9.7 Sports Activities	
9.8 Social and Cultural Activities	
9.9 Spiritual Facilities	
9.10 Student Council	
9.11 Student Publication Policy	
9.12 Visitors	
9.13 Change of Address	
10. Curriculum	
10.1 General Education	
10.2 Business Administration	
Study Plans	
Catalog Course Descriptions	
11. Course Descriptions	78
11.1 General Education Courses	
11.2 BBA Core Courses	
11.3 BBA Specialization Courses	
12. Foundation Program	100

Vision

City University College of Ajman continues to be a learning center that applies the American education system model modified to fit local requirements and offers specializations needed for the job market. Its demographically diversified academic community cultivates personality development, improves self-learning skills, and encourages the pursuit of continuous learning and academic research at the undergraduate and graduate levels. Accordingly, CUCA aspires to become a distinguished university at the national, regional, and international levels.

Mission

The mission of City University College of Ajman is to offer a competitive fee structure and sustainable, top-quality, and market-driven academic programs that give its students the opportunity to excel and reach their aspirations and ambitions. CUCA provides its students with an education that is diverse in the fields of Business Administration, Law, Public Relations and Advertising, Education, Information Technology, Pharmacy, Dentistry, and Architecture. In addition, the College creates an environment that is conducive to learning, promotes community engagement, encourages a culture of research, fosters individual growth, and facilitates a teaching and learning atmosphere centered on critical thinking, innovation, and diversity. Institutional Goals and Objectives

Goal 1: Raise the Quality of Teaching and Learning, and Introduce New Academic Programs that Add Value to the UAE Higher Education Sector

Objective 1: Increase Student Success

Student success is significantly facilitated by a supportive, top-quality teaching and learning environment. CUCA continues to actively support its teaching and learning efforts with appropriate facilities, staff, and student resources aligned with measurable goals. The College will continue to pursue initiatives that promote high levels of student engagement coupled with even more practical and integrated educational experiences. This is designed to enhance total student success that will prepare them to make long-term contributions to the overall society and its economy.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Enhancing student advising and mentoring
- Integrating outcome-based assessment into the curriculum
- Improving system quality monitoring
- Building student entrepreneurship and critical thinking skills
- Following best practices in higher education
- Increasing the variety of extra-curricular learning activities

Objective 2: Enhance Faculty and Staff Development

CUCA will provide its faculty and staff with the necessary financial resources and incentives needed for further development and success.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Recruiting and retaining faculty and staff of the highest quality
- Enhancing the professional development of faculty and staff through attendance at in-house, local, regional, and international training courses
- Improving its faculty performance review system with a more robust element of accountability that is included in appraisals and regular feedback
- Motivating faculty and staff to maintain top levels of excellent performance by establishing a rewards and recognition programs

Objective 3: Offer Academic Programs that Add Value to the UAE HE Sector.

The College will continue to introduce market-driven academic programs that add top-value to higher education in the UAE, and to local, national, and regional labor markets based on competitive advantage.

The College is adding new health sciences programs in Dentistry and Pharmacy, a postgraduate Professional Diploma in Teaching, and at the master's level, International Public Relations. These will all be taught in English.

For the Arabic programs, two new bachelor's programs in Public Administration, and Mass Communication and Crisis Management, will complement five new specializations added to the Master of Law program.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Introducing innovative and high-quality programs
- Conducting market surveys
- Considering the needs of students, employers, and the society

Objective 4: Foster Commitment to Academic Standards

CUCA will continue its commitment to achieving academic excellence by adopting several international higher education best practices. Some will be gained by leveraging benefits from its recent AACSB membership. These will add value and strengthen teaching and learning (T&L) along with further developing educational support services that are in line with the CAA *Standards*.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Implementing modern pedagogical models which include outcomes-based and student-centered education, Bloom's Taxonomy, and maintaining error-free instructor course files
- Using increasingly advanced learning management systems and teaching with technology

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Goal 1:

- 80% Student Satisfaction with the Quality of Teaching
- 90% Instructor Course Portfolio Quality Level
- 80% Student Satisfaction with Teaching and Learning Resources
- 80% Student Satisfaction with Program Courses
- 80% Faculty Satisfaction Level with Program Courses
- Student Performance: CGPA of 3.0 on a 4.0-Point Scale
- 80% Average Performance of Student Interns
- 80% Average Quality of Student Capstone Projects

Goal 2: Continuously Improve Institutional Effectiveness and Quality

The Institutional Effectiveness (IE) program identifies processes that CUCA uses to determine how well it is accomplishing its mission. One of these processes is outcomes assessment which contributes to IE by evaluating academic and administrative support unit success.

For academic programs in particular, faculty members establish outcomes that identify what students should be able to do as a result of their studies. They collect information to measure how well students achieved the outcomes, and then use the results to make changes in the curriculum. IE should show continuous improvement in programs along with overall curriculum planning and delivery.

Objective 1. Design college-wide processes that enhance effective teaching and learning practices

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Conducting regular institutional reviews of all academic programs and services, based on College policies and the CAA Standards
- Using benchmarks and international best practices to compare teaching and learning at CUCA with similar institutions in the UAE, UK, and USA that may also be AACSB members

Objective 2. Use information technology and data for well-informed decision making.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to:

- Use Institutional Research mechanisms to monitor CLO achievement every term and collect data through surveys, observations, and on-going reviews of its operations
- Analyze data and other information gathered internally and through networking with AACSB-member schools to better inform the College leadership for planning and decision making
- Build institutional knowledge about what works most successfully in an area and document successes so they become part of the College mindset

Objective 3. Regularly evaluate all academic programs and administrative functions of the College during planned assessment cycles.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Developing and using a comprehensive assessment plan to check the effectiveness of academic programs and administrative units
- Using the information gathered during assessments to make changes to programs and support service operations as required
- Using assessment results to make changes and improvements over time to support IE and quality

Objective 4. Harness the many advantages of AACSB membership to improve the quality of work and academic life for students, staff, and faculty.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to:

- Scan other member schools for literature that contains good ideas and practices
- Engage a variety of staff at AACSB-member schools to compare thoughts and methodology that could eventually lead to greater success at CUCA
- Present a greater number of workshops and seminars on a variety of subjects that will achieve both short- and long-term improvements

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Goal 2:

- 80% Student Satisfaction with Teaching and Learning
- 80% Graduate Satisfaction with Educational Experience
- 80% Employer Satisfaction with CUCA Graduates
- 80% Alumni Satisfaction
- 100% Resolution of Identified Action Items
- 100% Follow-up and Implementation of Identified Action Items
- 80% Faculty Satisfaction with Course Content
- 80% Staff Satisfaction with Unit Performance

Goal 3: Continuously Enhance a Sustainable Infrastructure, Resources, and Student Services

Objective 1: Continuously upgrade the existing infrastructure.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Using find-and-fix maintenance practices
- Modify College facilities for maximum efficiency
- Move to the newly-built campus at the first available opportunity

Objective 2: Develop physical resources.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Benchmarking HR practices to both national and international standards, including employee development and training
- Improving campus-wide technology resources and adding learning management systems (LMS)
- Increasing learning resources and effectively using study space in the new facility

Objective 3: Develop financial resources.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Diversifying its income sources to strengthen its portfolio
- Using effective and flexible financial planning
- Continuously reviewing its financial operations

Objective 4: Provide career-oriented student services.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Developing the role and responsibility of the Student Council
- Conducting more diverse and enriching student visits (field trips to government departments, industries, commercial ventures, etc.)
- Improving facilities for more diverse athletic and recreational activities
- Implementing career planning and general counseling services

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Goal 3:

- 80% Average Stakeholder Satisfaction with Physical Resources
- 10% Annual Growth Rate of Human Resources
- 10% Annual Growth Rate of Technology Resources
- 10% Annual Growth Rate of Learning Resources
- 10% Annual Increase in Financial Resources
- 70% Average Satisfaction with Student Services

Goal 4: Foster Relationships with the UAE Community

Objective 1: Partner with local and national departments in the public and private sectors.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Increasing partnership agreements with local and national public sector organizations by 10% each year
- Increasing partnership agreements with local and national private sector firms by 10% each year

Objective 2: Develop local and national collaborations with other universities.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Expanding university resources through joint research and learning opportunities
- Using resources of other institutions when concluding a collaboration
 agreement
- Enhancing the marketing and recruitment efforts for future graduate programs

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Goal 4:

- 10% annual increase in collaboration agreements with local and national organizations
- 5% annual increase in collaboration agreements with local and national universities
- 80% satisfaction with CUCA performance among local and national constituents

Key Performance Indicator	2017-2018	2018-2019	2019-2020	2020-2021	2021-2022
Annual Increase in Collaboration Agreements with Local and National Organizations	10%	10%	10%	10%	10%
Annual Increase in Collaboration Agreements with local and national Universities	5%	5%	5%	5%	5%
Satisfaction with CUCA Performance Among Local and National Constituents	70%	75%	77%	78%	80%

Goal 5: Become a Nationally, Regionally, and Internationally Recognized University

Objective 1: Develop collaborations with universities at the regional level.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to:

- Establish contact with regional universities to eventually initiate faculty exchange programs
- Establish contact with regional universities to eventually initiate student exchange programs

Objective 2: Develop collaborations with universities at the international level.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to:

- Establish contact with international universities to eventually initiate faculty exchange programs
- Establish contact with international universities to eventually initiate student exchange programs

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Goal 5:

- 10% annual increase in collaboration agreements with regional universities
- 5% annual increase in collaboration agreements with international universities
- 80% satisfaction with CUCA performance among regional and international constituents

Goal 6: Encourage a College-Wide Research Culture

Objective 1: Prepare a research strategy.

To achieve this, CUCA has prepared an *Academic Research Plan (2014-2019)* with details on research expectations, faculty responsibilities, promotion criteria, budgeting, and other important information.

Objective 2: Allocate a research budget.

To achieve this, CUCA has allocated funds in a five-year research budget which includes a 20% average annual increase in funding. This is also included in the *Academic Research Plan.*

Objective 3: Increase the visibility of CUCA through research efforts.

To achieve this, CUCA plans to continue:

- Publishing research articles for refereed academic journals
- Attending national, regional, and international conferences, seminars, and workshops

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Goal 6:

- 20% increase in average annual research budget
- 20% increase in research articles published annually by faculty members
- Gradually increase faculty member attendance at conferences, workshops, or seminars

Core Values

Excellence

in all College functions including our academic programs, student support, community engagement, and other services.

Dedication

to the profession of teaching and improving the total learning experience for our students.

Integrity

in any activity within and outside of the College.

Respect

for all individuals, along with the customs and practices of the UAE.

Preparedness

by anticipating change and responding to the requirements of our stakeholders.

Innovation

by encouraging and supporting innovation, at the academic and administrative levels, to provide solutions for improving teaching and learning, and contributing to the growth of the UAE society.

Ethics

through honesty and transparency, coupled with trust, responsibility, and honor.

Diversity

in teaching and learning for students from different cultural backgrounds to establish a top-notch learning environment.

Teamwork

in all College activities, especially between faculty, staff members, and students.

Empowerment

by delegating authority and accountability to all faculty and staff members to promote efficiency and problem-solving at all levels.

Motivation

through our recognition and rewards program while ensuring everyone feels that they are an integral part of the CUCA team.

1. College Structure

2. Authorities

Board of Directors. The Board is the governing body and legal part of CUCA that approves and monitors policy.

Responsibilities of the Board:

- Provide leadership and guidance to the college
- Approve College policies and their amendments
- Secure financial resources to maintain and support College objectives
- Appoints the President
- Approve by-laws which govern organizational, financial, and executive affairs
- Confer academic degrees
- Make decisions on recommendations submitted by the Academic Council concerning future plans for the College
- Approve the establishment of new departments, non-academic units, and new programs
- Contract for the College's external financial audit
- Approve the Annual Budget and External Financial Audit Report
- Accept grants, donations, or endowments provided they are not in conflict with the purpose for which they were established
- Determine College tuition and fees.

3. Organization كلية المدينة الجامعية بعجمان CUC CITY UNIVERSITY COLLEGE ORGANIZATION COLLEGE OF AJMAN **Boardof Directors** 1 September 2017 External Audit President Vice Chancellor Director of Dean Institutional Effectiveness Academic Quality Institutional Registrar Council Assurance Research MBA Admissions-Registration Information Records Law (MLaw - BLaw) Finance and Administration IT-Network Manager Accounting Manager Human Resource Management (Arabic) Human Resources Technical Support Hospitality and **Tourism Management** Services Development **Public Relations** and Advertising Logistics-Security Finance Manager Human Resource Management Health Clinic Professional Diploma in Teaching Accountants Purchasing Cashiers Management Information Systems General PRO Education Marketing Public Marketing Relations Student Affairs English Activities Athletics Counseling Placement Services

Revised: 1 September 2016

16

College Library

4. CUCA Administration

President. The President of the College is selected by the Board, continues in office at the pleasure of the Board, and receives such compensation as the Board may direct.

The President is the liaison between the Board and the College and is an ex-officio Board member of the Board without the power to vote; executes Board policies to operate, develop, and promote the College mission and objectives; performs such acts, duties, and responsibilities that promote the interests of the College consistent with the College By-Laws; represents the College in public and presides at public academic occasions, or designates a College officer to preside; keeps the Board and Executive Committee informed of College operations and activities; and has other powers and duties as assigned by the Board or Executive Committee. The Board evaluates the performance of the President in the above functions annually.

Vice Chancellor. The Vice Chancellor is appointed by the President with the approval of the Board, continues in office at the pleasure of the President, and receives such compensation as the President may direct with the concurrence of the Board. The Vice Chancellor:

a. Is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the College, second in responsibility only to the President.

b. Is a member of the College faculty and of each department and an ex-officio member of each academic committee of the College.

c. Reports to the President and has the powers and duties as the President designates, with the concurrence of the Board.

d. The Vice Chancellor will exercise the powers and duties of the President in case of a vacancy in that office and during the President's absence.

The annual assessment of performance for the Vice Chancellor is based on the growth of the College in number of programs and student enrollments, financial viability, and facility improvements.

Dean. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor and is the Chief Academic Officer (CAO) of the College who oversees all matters pertaining to academics. The Vice Chancellor appoints the Dean with the advice and consent of the appropriate college faculty and with the approval of the President and Board.

Department Chairs. Overall managers of specific academic departments. Responsible for course management, delivery, and academic program effectiveness in meeting program learning outcomes. The Vice Chancellor and Dean appoint the Department Chairs who report directly to and assist the Dean in managing and implementing College academic policies and procedures. The Department Chairs are the facilitating link between the various department faculty members, students, and senior College managers. All activities and roles of the Department Chairs are undertaken to further the best interests of students.

As the principal executives of their departments, the Chairs perform a variety of planning and management functions, and seek the counsel of their faculty members and delegate duties whenever possible. In addition, as faculty members, they are expected to participate in teaching, research, and other departmental activities.

Department Chair responsibilities include the following:

a. Oversee the preparation of department academic plans and follow-up on implementation.

b. Submit proposals for recruitment of faculty members and other employees involved in academics.

c. Monitor teaching and learning processes and direct activities to enhance student learning within the department.

d. Submit reports to the Dean when required about academic, administrative, and financial matters. They also show student activities, performance, teaching and learning issues, and department strengths and weaknesses.

e. Prepare and submit department budgets to the Dean and Finance Manager.

f. Supervise the academic advising of students and implement policies to enhance research activities within the department.

g. Evaluate the performance of faculty and other support staff within the department.

h. Monitor assessment and use the results to improve the quality of teaching and learning activities within the department. Review plans for professional faculty development before submitting them to the Dean.

Academic Council

Membership. The Academic Council is chaired by the Dean and consists of the Department Chairs, the Director of Institutional Effectiveness, Administration Manager, Finance Manager, and two representatives of the faculty selected by the Dean. It meets once each semester or whenever required.

Responsibilities.

a. Supervise the implementation of College policies.

b. Formulate plans which secure the appropriate infrastructure to execute College objectives.

c. Recommend new by-laws and policies applicable to academics and program support (or recommend changes to existing ones) for approval by the Board.

d. Approve College study plans.

e. Recommend, the awarding of academic degrees to the Board.

f. Recommend changes to policies, terms, and conditions for student admission and enrollment in accordance with the Commission for Academic Accreditation *Standards* to the Board.

g. Commission and oversee feasibility studies to determine and establish new departments, non-academic units, and programs for approval by the Board.

h. Follow-through with the implementation of College plans for teaching, research, and community services.

i. Review reports on faculty positions, hiring, and promotion and submit recommendations to the Board for approval.

j. Review institutional effectiveness assessment results and recommend actions necessary to ensure maintenance of the highest quality standards.

Director of Institutional Effectiveness. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor. Manages and measures institutional effectiveness and quality in all College areas. This includes evidence-based student learning assessments that should indicate student success through course design and delivery, teaching and learning practices, and student progress monitoring by academic and administrative support units. Produces and maintains the relevant documentation for stakeholders and accreditors. Drives the campus-wide continuous improvement effort.

Registrar. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor. Responsible for all aspects of administration related to registering students. This includes student financial services, academic disciplinary procedures, formal admissions, student records management and maintenance, final grade results, transcript evaluation and preparation, and graduation activities. Although the Registrar manages the academic advising function, formal advising is conducted by the appropriate faculty members.

Administration Manager. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor. Provides essential administrative and human resource management, logistics, and maintenance support for all College functions.

Finance Manager. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor. Supports the mission of the College by ensuring its financial well-being, including budgeting, funds management, accounting, financial reporting, investments, auxiliary enterprises, and administering the College's business affairs. The Finance Manager performs the following duties:

a. Serves as the chief financial advisor for the Vice Chancellor and manages all financial operations of the College, including financial planning, conduct of financial analyses, the handling of investments, and provision of appropriate controls and reports, funds management, accounting, and payroll.

b. Assists the Vice Chancellor in budget, capital planning, and development.

c. Assists the Vice Chancellor and other administrators in gathering and analyzing data relative to the operation and function of budgeting, financial, and business services.

d. Assists with audit reviews, conducts and directs fiscal analysis and planning.

e. Supervises property and inventory control, purchasing, contracts, facility upgrades, and outsourcing activities as required.

IT/Network Manager. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor. Oversees all aspects of information technology, communication, network administration, and other support functions for all College operations. This includes training and assisting faculty and staff in computer software use, in addition to computer hardware, database, and network maintenance or troubleshooting.

Marketing Officer. Reports directly to the Vice Chancellor. Provides advertising and public relations support for all College academic programs and activities. This includes representing and promoting CUCA in local, national, and regional education trade fairs, conventions, and other promotional events.

Student Affairs Manager. Reports directly to the Dean. This office is responsible for student matters and includes functions such as counseling, learning support, student placement and careers, future employment, alumni, health, and student extracurricular activities. Supervises the following activities:

a. Participates in the promotional activities of the College which are designed to enhance its image.

b. Hosts formal and informal functions such as luncheons, outings, etc., to enhance student quality of life and social skills.

c. Serves as liaison with the chairs of the academic departments to ensure they identify and address the needs of their students.

d. Keeps abreast of and informs senior managers about trends and issues related to Student Affairs.

Librarian. Reports directly to the Dean. Responsible for maintaining a properly stocked professional library of books, journals, and other resources including resources to meet the academic requirements of the teaching departments and students.

Administration, Faculty, and Staff

CUCA كلية المدينة الجامعية بعجمان CITY UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF AJMAN	Faculty and Staff Directory		
NAME	POSITION	EXT	FMAII
Executive Offices		2711	
Mr. Imran Khan	President	555	imran@cuca.ae
Dr. Mohamed S. Amerah	Vice-Chancellor	333	amerah@cuca.ae
Denise Peña	Executive Secretary	206	d.pena@cuca.ae
Iram Tariq	Executive Assistant	206	i.tariq@cuca.ae
Office of Institutional Effectivenes	ŝS	1	
Mark F.B. Langer	Director	210	mark@cuca.ae
Dr. Nabeel Murshed	Quality Assurance Officer	290	n.murshed@cuca.ae
Ms. Marwa Abdelgadir	Quality Assurance Officer	368	m.abdelgadir@cuca.ae
Master of Business Administratio	n		
Dr. Hardeep Anant	Program Director	361	hardeep@cuca.ae
Dr. Mahmoud Haj-Ahmed	Associate Professor	330	m.ahmed@cuca.ae
Dr. Shabir Hassan Banday	Associate Professor	321	s.hassan@cuca.ae
Dr. Babeet Gupta	Assistant Professor	358	b.gupta@cuca.ae
Finance and Accounting			
Dr. Muhamad Jumaa	Department Chair	234	m.jumaa@cuca.ae
Dr. Jaishu M. Antony	Assistant Professor	237	j.antony@cuca.ae
Dr. Zaheda Ronak Daruwala	Assistant Professor	348	z.daruwala@cuca.ae
Dr. Faisal Khan	Assistant Professor	308	f.khan@cuca.ae
Hospitality and Tourism Manager	nent		
Vacant			

Human Resource Management				
Dr. Amer Kassem	Department Chair	263	a.kassem@cuca.ae	
Dr. Hossam K. Ahmed	Deputy Department Chair	281	a.hossam@cuca.ae	
Dr. Zainab Al Ghurabli	Assistant Professor	260	z.ghurabli@cuca.ae	
Dr. Abdul Karim Kitana	Assistant Professor	247	a.kitana@cuca.ae	
Dr. Zahi Kamil Yaseen	Assistant Professor	258	z.yaseen@cuca.ae	
Dr. Saigeeta Kukunuru	Assistant Professor	340	s.geeta@cuca.ae	
Dr. Lamis Albdour	Assistant Professor	301	l.albdour@cuca.ae	
Dr. Mahmoud Kaleem	Assistant Professor	364	m.kaleem@cuca.ae	
Dr. Abu Faiz	Assistant Professor	372	m.faiz@cuca.ae	
Dr. Marwan Yousef	Assistant Professor	254	m.youssef@cuca.ae	
Dr. Hamed Jawdat Usrof	Assistant Professor	259	h.jawdat@cuca.ae	
Dr. Mohamed Al Jabari	Assistant Professor	288	m.aljabari@cuca.ae	
Dr. Khalid Al Zamel	Assistant Professor	347	k.zamil@cuca.ae	
Marketing				
Dr. Saju Eapen Thomas	Department Chair	235	s.thomas@cuca.ae	
Dr. Rameshwaran Byloppilly	Assistant Professor	236	b.ramesh@cuca.ae	
Management Information System	IS			
Dr. Ayman Bassam	Department Chair	243	a.bassam@cuca.ae	
Dr. Syed Asfandyar Gilani	Assistant Professor	244	s.gilani@cuca.ae	
Public Relations and Advertising				
Dr. Mohamed Firas	Department Chair	326	m.firas@cuca.ae	
Dr. Mohamed Jehad Jamal	Professor	324	m.jamal@cuca.ae	
Dr. Fahed Zaqout	Assistant Professor	325	f.zaqout@cuca.ae	
Dr. Hammam Al Rifai	Assistant Professor	336	h.rifai@cuca.ae	
Dr. Dawood Mutar	Assistant Professor	291	d.delaimi@cuca.ae	
Dr. Samar Abdelhalim	Assistant Professor	370	s.halim@cuca.ae	
Ms. Faten Aljazzar	Instructor	262	f.aljazzar@cuca.ae	
Mr. Radwan Mohamad	TV Studio Supervisor	373	r.mohamed@cuca.ae	
Professional Diploma in Teaching]			
Dr. Khalid Y. Al Derbashi	Department Chair	246	k.derbashi@cuca.ae	

General Education			
Dr. Samer Abu-Omar	Department Chair (Interim)	287	s.omar@cuca.ae
Dr. Ahmad Ezzat Abdulzaher	Assistant Professor	249	a.abdulzaher@cuca.ae
Dr. Haytham Bany-Issa	Assistant Professor	332	h.banyissa@cuca.ae
Dr. Mohammad Ennab	Assistant Professor	261	ennab@cuca.ae
Dr. Mohamed Hadi Najdawi	Assistant Professor	334	m.najdawi@cuca.ae
Dr. Ammar Mustafa Harmouch	Assistant Professor	336	a.harmosh@cuca.ae
Mr. Mohamed Al Rashed	Instructor	255	m.rashid@cuca.ae
Ms. Namita Das	Instructor	329	namita@cuca.ae
Ms. Hayat Al Jaibeji	Instructor	282	h.jaibeji@cuca.ae
Ms. Wafaa Abedi	Quality Assurance Officer	211	w.abedi@cuca.ae
English			
Dr. Joseph El Helou	Department Chair	233	j.helou@cuca.ae
Ms. Wafaa Basheer	Instructor	286	wafaa@cuca.ae
Mr. El Sayed Mahmoud	Instructor	335	s.sayed@cuca.ae
Mr. Sultan Al Nafaa Bencherab	Instructor	213	s.sultan@cuca.ae
Law			
Dr. Adel Abu Hashima	Department Chair	310	adel@cuca.ae
Dr. Ahmed Al Refaei	Deputy Department Chair	292	a.refaei@cuca.ae
Dr. Raed Soliman Faqir	Associate Professor	289	r.faqir@cuca.ae
Dr. Hala Ahmed Bahr	Associate Professor	268	h.bahr@cuca.ae
Dr. Ayman Haj	Associate Professor	306	a.abuhaj@cuca.ae
Dr. Abdul Karim	Assistant Professor	304	karim@cuca.ae
Dr. Khalid Hussain Khalid	Assistant Professor	298	k.hussain@cuca.ae
Dr. Fouad Q. Musaeed	Assistant Professor	300	f.qasem@cuca.ae
Dr. Abdallah Altarawneh	Assistant Professor	296	a.altarawneh@cuca.ae
Dr. Moiad Al Tawalbah	Assistant Professor	303	m.tawalbeh@cuca.ae
Dr. Amira Badr	Assistant Professor	297	a.badr@cuca.ae
Dr. Ahmed Hassan Fouly	Assistant Professor	307	a.fouly@cuca.ae
Dr. Mohd El Naghy	Assistant Professor	299	m.elnaghy@cuca.ae

Faculty Coordinators				
Reem Khalifa	Law and PRA	349	r.khalifa@cuca.ae	
Aisha Mohammed Awad	HRM and PDT	238	a.awad@cuca.ae	
Shahd Fami Daoud	BBA, MBA, GenEd, English	359	s.daoud@cuca.ae	

Library			
Mohamed Tawfik	Assistant Librarian	341	m.tawfik@cuca.ae
Mays Maher Fawzi Alsadi	Library Assistant	212	m.alsadi@cuca.ae
Noha Bassyouni	Library Assistant	309	n.bassyouni@cuca.ae
Admissions and Registration			
Salma Senaran	Registrar	222	salma@cuca.ae
Randa Moustafa	Assistant Registrar	273	randa@cuca.ae
Rima Chehab	Asst Manager - Enrollment	320	r.chehab@cuca.ae
Mohammed Magdy	Admission Officer	208	m.magdy@cuca.ae
Amira Kiaty	Admission Officer	270	a.kaity@cuca.ae
Dalal Isaac	Admission Officer	315	d.isaac@cuca.ae
Asma Jamal Mahious	Admission Officer	269	a.mahious@cuca.ae
Alaa Halbouni	Admission Officer	362	a.halbouni@cuca.ae
Ahmed Moustafa	Admission Officer	367	a.mustafa@cuca.ae
Alaa Akil	Sr. Registration Officer	223	alaa@cuca.ae
Anhar Tarek Ahmed	Registration Officer	327	a.tarek@cuca.ae
Janet Gener	Document Controller	285	j.gener@cuca.ae
Alaa Said	Receptionist	200	a.said@cuca.ae
Nima Ali	Receptionist/Operator	346	n.ali@cuca.ae
Aisha Abdullah	Admin Assistant	338	a.abdullah@cuca.ae

Accounting and Finance				
Shahid Saleem	Financial Controller	242	shahid@cuca.ae	
Farhan Parvez	Asst Financial Controller	311	f.parvez@cuca.ae	
Mohammed Sajeed Ali	Chief Accountant	216	m.ali@cuca.ae	
Danish Narejo	Junior Accountant	293	d.narijo@cuca.ae	
Samia Ali Mujahed	Accounts Assistant	218	s.ali@cuca.ae	
Mohamed Faizan	Senior Cashier	277	m.faizan@cuca.ae	
Taj-Ud-Din Ismail	Junior Accountant/Cashier	360	t.ismail@cuca.ae	
Muhammad Ali Rizwan	Cashier	217	rizwan@cuca.ae	
Ma Christina Cruz	Cashier	218	c.cruz@cuca.ae	
Aireen Pajaron	Cashier	277	a.pajaron@cuca.ae	
Amro Nassar	Document Controller	217	a.nassar@cuca.ae	
Student Affairs				
Amal Al-Jiboury	Head of Student Affairs	313	amal@cuca.ae	
Alaa Samani	Student Affairs Officer	271	a.samani@cuca.ae	
lje Israel	Student Activity Officer	279	i.israel@cuca.ae	
Abdul Salam Refaei	Placement Coordinator	319	abdulsalam@cuca.ae	
Moaz Monzer	Placement Office Asst	339	m.monzer@cuca.ae	
Heyam Essam Mohammed	Administrative Assistant	371	h.aghbari@cuca.ae	
Jagishwar Singh Mahil	Sports Coordinator	245	j.singh@cuca.ae	
Information Technology				
Yasir Saleem	Manager-IT/Network	207	yasir@cuca.ae	
Joji Varghese	Senior Programmer	284	j.vargese@cuca.ae	
Mohammad Mudassar	Programmer	278	m.mudassar@cuca.ae	
Zia Ur Rahman	Network Administrator	280	z.rahman@cuca.ae	
Mohideen Feroz Khan	IT Assistant	214	m.feroz@cuca.ae	
Tahir Makhdoom	IT Programmer/Part-Time	278	t.makhdoom@cuca.ae	
			-	

Marketing			
Saddaf Kamil	PR and Media Manager	276	s.kamil@cuca.ae
Saleem Afzal	CEC In-Charge	282	s.afzal@cuca.ae
Ericson Javillo	Intl Student Coordinator	275	e.javillo@cuca.ae
Riaz Khan	Graphic Designer	265	r.khan@cuca.ae
Sunilkumar VR	Graphic Designer	331	s.raman@cuca.ae
Christina Toor	CEC Assistant	253	c.toor@cuca.ae
Administration and Human Re	esources		
Sadia Khan	Administration Manager	220	sadia@cuca.ae
Leeni Wilson	Asst Manager - HR & Admin	312	l.wilson@cuca.ae
Noorah Elakrouty	Senior Officer - HR & Admin	229	n.elakrouty@cuca.ae
Diana Ivy Navarro	HR & Admin Assistant	294	d.navarro@cuca.ae
Alaa Gamal Hassan	HR & Admin Assistant	363	a.hassan@cuca.ae
Melanie Marquez	School Nurse	240	melanie@cuca.ae
Mohammed Amer Alameri	Senior PRO	272	m.alameri@cuca.ae
Habib UI Rahman	PRO	230	habibalrazooqi@cuca.ae
Fadel Mohamed	PRO	274	f.mohammed@cuca.ae

Vishnu Haripriyan	Campus Engineer	224	vishnu@cuca.ae
Shahriyar Mamun	Asst Campus Supervisor	369	s.mamun@cuca.ae
Zain Shabbir	Purchase Coordinator	219	z.shabbir@cuca.ae
Najam Mahmood	Security Supervisor	232	n.mahmood@cuca.ae
Saiful Islam	Transportation Assistant	239	saif@cuca.ae
Naseeb Ur-Rehman	Housekeeping Supervisor	266	n.rahman@cuca.ae
Farhan Hassan	AC Supervisor	295	f.hasan@cuca.ae

5. Degree Programs

Business Administration

Master of Business Administration	Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree Specializations:	Degree Specializations:
Financial Management	Finance and Accounting
Human Resource Management	Hospitality and Tourism Management
Islamic Finance	Human Resource Management
Marketing	Management Information Systems
Total Quality Management	Marketing

Human Resource Management (Arabic)

Bachelor of Human Resource Management

Law (Arabic)

Master of Law Degree Specializations: Public Law Private Law Bachelor of Law

Public Relations and Advertising (Arabic)

Bachelor of Public Relations and Advertising Degree Specializations: Public Relations Advertising

Professional Diploma in Teaching (Arabic)

Licensing and Accreditation

The City University College of Ajman is licensed and its programs are accredited by the Commission for Academic Accreditation of the Ministry of Education, United Arab Emirates.

Notes:

Documentation in Arabic language for the Departments of HR Management, Law, Public Relations and Advertising, and Professional Diploma in Teaching is published separately. Please obtain the literature from these departments for admission requirements, schedules, and other information.

CUCA offers morning, evening, and weekend classes. Morning and evening classes meet Sunday through Thursday. Weekend classes meet Friday and Saturday mornings, afternoons, and evenings.

Academic Calendar



CITY UNIVERSITY

Academic Calendar 2016-2017

Fall Semester 2016			
DATE	DAY	EVENT	
01-09-2018	Thursday	Deadline for Admission	
03-09-2016 08-09-2016	Saturday-Thursday	Registration for New Students	
18-09-2016	Sunday	Orientation Day	
18-09-2016	Sunday	Weekday Classes Begin	
18-09-2016 22-09-2016	Sunday-Thursday	Add/Drop Period; Late Registration for Weekday Classes	
23-09-2016	Friday	Weekend Classes Begin	
23-09-2016 24-09-2016	Friday-Saturday	Add/Drop period; Late Registration for Weekend Classes	
01-10-2016	Saturday	Late Registration Deadline	
01-10-2016	Saturday	Deadline to Drop Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)	
06-11-2016	Sunday	Admission Begins for Spring Semester 2017	
06-11-2016 12-11-2016	Sunday-Saturday	Mid-Term Exam Period	
12-11-2016	Saturday	Deadline to Withdraw from Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)	
11-12-2016 17-12-2016	Sunday-Saturday	Application for Changing Specialization Period	
18-12-2016 07-01-2017	Sunday-Saturday	Fall Semester Recess	
08-01-2017 14-01-2017	Sunday – Saturday	Early registration week for spring semester	
19-01-2017	Thursday	Last Day of Weekday Classes	
21-01-2017	Saturday	Last Day of Weekend Classes	
22-01-2017 30-01-2017	Sunday-Monday	Final Examination Period	
02-02-2017	Thursday	Examination Board Meeting	
02-02-2017	Thursday	Semester Grades Announced	

Fall 2016

Spring Semester 2017		
DATE	DAY	EVENT
26-01-2017	Wednesday	Deadline for Admission
29-01-2017 04-02-2017	Sunday-Saturday	Registration for New Students
05-02-2017	Sunday	Orientation Day
05-02-2017	Sunday	Weekday Classes Begin
05-02-2017 09-02-2017	Sunday-Thursday	Add/Drop Period; Late Registration for Weekday Classes
10-02-2017	Friday	Weekend Classes Begin
10-02-2017 11-02-2017	Friday-Saturday	Add/Drop period; Late Registration for Weekend Classes
18-02-2017	Saturday	Late Registration Deadline
18-02-2017	Saturday	Deadline to Drop Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
26-03-2017 08-04-2017	Sunday – Saturday	Spring semester recess
09-04-2017	Sunday	Deadline to withdraw from courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
09-04-2017	Sunday	Admission Begins for Fall Semester 2017
09-04-2017 15-04-2017	Sunday-Saturday	Mid-Term Exam Period
14-05-2017 20-05-2017	Sunday-Saturday	Application for changing specialization period
21-05-2017 27-05-2017	Sunday – Saturday	Early registration week for summer and fall 2017 semester
01-06-2017	Thursday	Last Day of Weekday Classes
03-06-2017	Saturday	Last Day of Weekend Classes
04-06-2017 12-06-2017	Sunday – Monday	Final exam period
15-08-2017	Thursday	Examination Board Meeting
15-08-2017	Thursday	Semester Grades Announced
26-08-2017 28-06-2017	Monday – Wednesday	Incomplete final exam period for spring 2017

Summer I 2017			
DATE	DAY	EVENT	
18-08-2017	Sunday	Weekday Classes Begin	
18-08-2017	Sunday-Monday	Add/Drop Period; Late Registration for Weekday Classes	
19-08-2017			
23-08-2017	Friday	Weekend Classes Begin	
23-08-2017	Friday	Add/Drop period; Late Registration for Weekend Classes	
01-07-2017	Saturday	Deadline to Drop Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)	
08-07-2017	Saturday	Deadline to Withdraw from Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)	
02-07-2017	Sunday – Saturday	Mid-Term Exam Period	
08-07-2017			
20-07-2017	Thursday	Last day of Weekday Classes	
23-07-2017	Saturday	Last day of Weekend Classes	
23-07-2017	Sunday-Tuesday	Final exam period	
25-07-2017			
27-07-2017	Thursday	Examination Board Meeting	
27-07-2017	Thursday	Session Grades Announced	

Summer II 2017	7	
DATE	DAY	EVENT
28-07-2017	Friday	Weekend Classes Begin
28-07-2017	Friday	Add/Drop Period; Late Registration for Weekend Classes
30-07-2017	Sunday	Weekday Classes Begin
30-07-2017 31-01-2017	Sunday-Monday	Add/Drop period; Late Registration for Weekday Classes
12-08-2017	Saturday	Deadline to Drop Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
19-08-2017	Saturday	Deadline to Withdraw from Courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
13-08-2017 19-08-2017	Sunday-Tuesday	Mid-Term Exam Period
26-08-2017	Friday	Last Day of Weekend Classes
29-08-2017	Tuesday	Last Day of Weekday Classes
04-09-2017 05-09-2017	Monday – Tuesday	Final exam period

07-09-2017	Thursday	Examination Board Meeting
07-09-2017	Thursday	Session Grades Announced

The UAE Government will announce the dates of official holidays Fall Semester 2017 begins on Sunday, 10th September

CUCA	كلية المدينة الجامعية بعجمان CITY UNIVERSITY
	COLLEGE OF AJMAN

Academic Calendar 2016-2017 Master of Business Administration (MBA)

FALL SEMESTER 2016			
Term 1 (Maximum 2 Courses)			
Date	Day	Teaching Weeks	Event
18/09/2016	Sunday	Week 1	Orientation Day for Fall
18/09/2016	Sunday	Week 1	Weekday classes begin
23/09/2016	Friday	Week 1	Weekend classes begin
18/09/2016- 24/09/2016	Sunday - Saturday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration
01/10/2016	Saturday	Week 2	Deadline to drop courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
07/11/2016	Monday	Week 8	Last day of weekday classes
11/11/2016	Friday	Week 8	Last day of weekend classes
09/11/2016 - 10/11/2016	Wednesday- Thursday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekday classes
12/11/2016	Saturday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekends classes
Term 2 (Max	timum 2 Cou		
Date	Day	Teaching Weeks	Event
13/11/2016	Sunday	Week 1	Weekday classes begin
18/11/2016	Friday	Week 1	Weekend classes begin
13/11/2016- 19/11/2016	Sunday - Saturday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration □
26/11/2016	Saturday	Week 2	Deadline to drop courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
18/12/2016- 07/01/2017	Sunday - Saturday		Fall semester recess
23/01/2017	Monday	Week 8	Last day of weekday classes
15/01/2017	Friday	Week 8	Last day of weekend classes
25/01/2017- 26/01/2017	Wednesday- Thursday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekday classes
28/01/2017	Saturday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekends classes



كلية المدينة الجامعية بعجمان CITY UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF AJMAN

Academic Calendar 2016-2017 Master of Business Administration (MBA)

SPRING SEMESTER 2017			
Term 1 (Maximum 2 Courses)			
Date	Day	Teaching Weeks	Event
29/01/2017	Sunday	Week 1	Orientation Day for Spring
29/01/2017	Sunday	Week 1	Weekday classes begin
03/02/2017	Friday	Week 1	Weekend classes begin
29/01/2017- 04/02/2017	Sunday - Saturday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration □
11/2/2017	Saturday	Week 2	Deadline to drop courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
20/03/2017	Monday	Week 8	Last day of weekday classes
24/03/2017	Friday	Week 8	Last day of weekend classes
22/03/2017- 23/03/2017	Wednesday- Thursday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekday classes
25/03/2017	Saturday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekends classes
26-03/2017- 08/04/2017	Sunday - Saturday		Spring semester recess
Term 2 (Ma>	kimum 2 Cou		
Date	Day	Teaching Weeks	Event
09/04/2017	Sunday	Week 1	Weekday classes begin
14/04/2017	Friday	Week 1	Weekend classes begin
09/04/2017- 15/04/2017	Sunday - Saturday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration □
22/04/2017	Saturday	Week 2	Deadline to drop courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
29/05/2017	Monday	Week 8	Last day of weekday classes
02/06/2017	Friday	Week 8	Last day of weekend classes
31/05/2017- 01/06/2017	Wednesday- Thursday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekday classes
03/06/2017	Saturday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekends classes



كلية المدينة الجامعية بعجمان CITY UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF AJMAN

Academic Calendar 2016-2017 Master of Business Administration (MBA)

SUMMER I SESSION 2017			
Term 1 (Maximum 2 Courses)			
Date	Day	Teaching Weeks	Event
04/06/2017	Sunday	Week 1	Orientation Day for Summer
04/06/2017	Sunday	Week 1	Weekday classes begin
09/06/2017	Friday	Week 1	Weekend classes begin
04/06/2017- 10/06/2017	Sunday - Saturday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration 🛛
17/06/2017	Saturday	Week 2	Deadline to drop courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
31/07/2017	Monday	Week 7	Last day of weekday classes
04/08/2017	Friday	Week 7	Last day of weekend classes
02/08/2017- 03/08/2017	Wednesday- Thursday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekday classes
05/08/2017	Saturday	Week 8	Final exam period for weekends classes
SUMMER II	SESSION 2017		
Term 1 (Ma	aximum 1 Cou		
Date	Day	Teaching Weeks	Event
06/08/2017	Sunday	Week 1	Weekday classes begin
11/08/2017	Friday	Week 1	Weekend classes begin
06/08/2017 - 07/08/2017	Sunday- Monday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration for weekday classes
11/08/2017- 12/08/2017	Friday- Saturday	Week 1	Add/Drop period; late registration for weekend classes
19/08/2017	Saturday	Week 2	Deadline to drop courses (no academic penalty but financial penalty applies)
29/08/2017	Tuesday	Week 4	Last day of weekday classes
08/09/2017	Friday	Week 4	Last day of weekend classes
05/09/2017- 06/09/2017	Tuesday- Wednesday	Week 5	Final exam period for weekday classes

Final exam for weekend classes

Dates of official holidays will be announced by the UAE Government

Week 5

* Fall 2017 will begin on Sunday September 10th

Saturday

09/09/2017

6. CUCA Campus

6.1 Facilities

The following paragraphs contain information on operating hours, regulations, and other guidelines for the use of CUCA facilities. The Vice Chancellor will control and direct the use of all campus facilities. CUCA facilities are subject to these guidelines except when the Vice Chancellor provides special authorization or waivers.

6.2 Operating Hours and Building Use

a. The CUCA campus is generally open Saturday through Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 10:30 p.m. excluding holidays. For specific weekend hours, consult the semester timetable. These hours are subject to change. The President will announce last-minute changes to operating hours in sufficient time to minimize any adverse impact on scheduling.

b. Employees, with the exception of faculty members, and students are not permitted to enter during closed hours without a valid reason or written permission from the President or Vice Chancellor. Violators will be considered to be trespassers and will be treated as such by security personnel, local police, or College officials. The President has the authority to develop and implement administrative policies and procedures governing after-hours building use.

c. Custodians will ensure all rooms are cleared after evening classes. They will also lock the buildings as soon as all students, staff, and visitors have departed. Custodians are authorized to ask any persons in the building after closing time to leave and must remain in place until the building is vacated. Custodians will promptly report all security and safety incidents to Security.

d. Use for Special Events. Prior approval to use buildings for special events must be obtained from the Administration Manager at least 48-hours in advance of the event, counting normal working days.

6.3 General Regulations

College buildings and grounds are intended for use by students, faculty, and staff to support academic research, instruction, and extension. College buildings and grounds may not be used by individuals, groups, or organizations who are not connected with the College except by written permission from the Administration Manager, and then only in accordance with College rules and regulations.

a. Permits. Written permits for the temporary use of College grounds, buildings or rooms for any purpose other than regularly scheduled classroom work must be secured in advance from Administration Manager.

b. Requirements. It is expected that proper care will be taken of the facility and that simple rules of courtesy, decency, and good manners will be observed at all times. Failure to abide by these requirements may cause permission for use of the facility to be withdrawn. This may also affect future permission for use of any College facilities.

c. No College facility, or part thereof, or grounds may be occupied as living rooms or bedrooms except those duly set aside for such purposes.

d. The College reserves the right to set reasonable restrictions on time, place, and manner for all meetings or gatherings to ensure the most beneficial use of the buildings and grounds of the College is made and that there is no interference with the right of students to obtain an education.

e. The use of College facilities does not imply an endorsement of any individual, group, or organization and the name of the College will not be identified in any way with the aims, policies, programs, products, or opinions of any individual, groups or organizations which may meet in College facilities or grounds in accordance with these regulations.

6.4 Grounds Restrictions

a. The Security Division provides overall security for the campus and establishes effective control policies. Campus security is monitored around-the-clock including weekends and holidays.

b. The Security Division is responsible for the physical security of College buildings. They also secure and issue keys.

c. Grand-master keys will be issued only to the Administration Manager, Security Division Manager, and designated supervisory personnel. Master keys will be issued only to Department Chairs.

d. Domestic animals are prohibited on College properties with the exception of support animals, which may be required by visitors, students, and employees.

e. Students or staff who require the regular use of such animals must register with Security. Documentation certifying such need may be requested.

f. Use and Scheduling of Facilities for College-Sponsored Activities:

(1) Facilities may be used for College-sponsored activities in accordance with procedures established by the administration. All requests for using College facilities will be submitted to Administration Manager.

(2) The President or a designee will establish priorities whenever scheduling conflicts arise.

6.5 Equipment and Facilities Responsibility

Department Chairs are responsible for the equipment in their respective departments and will periodically conduct a physical inventory check when requested by the administration. The College's inventory list will include all capital assets valued at or above AED 1000.00 and all audiovisual equipment of AED 300.00 or more.

a. Removal from Designated Area. No item of equipment or furniture may be moved without the approval of the Department Chair.

b. Personal Use. College-owned equipment or other property may not be taken off-campus or loaned for personal use. Personal use of College-owned property violates the insurance policy carried by the College. Therefore, exceptions to this policy cannot be made.

c. Report of Loss.

(1) Loss of equipment should be reported immediately by phone to the Administration Manager and to Campus Security.

(2) Campus Security will then call the local police and complete a police report if it is necessary for police to be dispatched to the campus.

(3) Department Chairs will ensure responsible subordinates prepare an incident report which summarizes the circumstances of the loss, as well as the date and time the police report was made, and which requests that the lost item be removed from the inventory accountability records for the department.

6.6 Classroom, Computer Laboratory, and Office Space Use

a. The Vice Chancellor will assign space in College buildings for continued use by academic departments or other units for offices or other special purposes.

b. The Dean will also assign classrooms and computer laboratories for scheduled classes and examinations on a semester-by-semester basis. Optimum class size is 25 students.

c. Members of the College faculty, staff or students who are assigned office space in a campus building and who have been authorized to have a building exterior key, will be authorized to use assigned office space whenever required.

6.7 Photocopying

a. From time to time, the faculty and staff of the CUCA may use photocopied materials to supplement or assist with their work. In many cases, photocopying can facilitate the College mission of teaching and research.

b. Faculty and staff may reproduce copyrighted works for instructional and research purposes without securing permission and without paying royalties when

the circumstances amount to what the law calls "fair use." It is generally fair use for faculty to copy supplementary items for such purposes as filling in missing information or for bringing materials up to date, but fair use is a multi-faceted concept.

c. The photocopy room, open during normal operating hours, may be used to reproduce classroom and office materials by faculty and staff.

d. Copyrighted Materials. Duplication of copyrighted sections of magazines, manuals, books, and other publications will not be done without prior approval of the copyright owner.

e. Test Materials. All materials that are identified as test materials will be kept in a locked cabinet and will neither be accepted from nor released to students.

6.8 Acceptable Computer Use Policy

This policy applies to all users including faculty, staff, students, and guest users of CUCA computer networks, equipment, or connecting resources.

a. College Inspection of Personal Electronic Information. Electronic information on College networks or equipment, including, but not limited to, electronic mail and personal information, is subject to examination by the College when:

(1) It is necessary to maintain or improve the functioning of College computing resources.

(2) It is necessary to comply with or verify compliance with law.

b. Acceptable Use Guidelines.

(1) Responsibilities of Users of College Computer Resources:

(a) Respect the intellectual property rights of authors, contributors, and publishers in all media.

(b) Protect user ID, password, and system from unauthorized use.

(c) Adhere to the terms of software licenses and other contracts. Persons loading software on any College computer must adhere to all licensing requirements for the software. Except where allowed by College site licenses, copying software licensed for College use for personal use is a violation of this policy.

(d) Adhere to other College and campus policies, including the Collected Rules and Regulations of the CUCA.

(e) Adhere to College data access policies or those established by law.

(f) Use computer resources in compliance with College policies and regulations.

c. Prohibited Uses of College Computer Resources:

(1) Unauthorized or excessive personal use. Use may be excessive if it overburdens a network, results in substantial use of system capacity, or otherwise subjects the institution to increased costs or risks.

(2) Uses that interfere with the proper functioning of the College's information technology resources.

(3) Uses that unreasonably interfere with the ability of others to make use of College computer resources.

(4) Attempting to gain or gaining unauthorized access to the computer system, or files of another.

(5) Use of College computer resources to infringe the intellectual property rights of others.

(6) Use of College computer resources for personal profit, except as permitted under the College's conflict of interest policy.

d. Enforcement of Acceptable Use Policy. Violation of the Acceptable Use Policy may result in a denial of access to College computer resources, and those disciplinary actions provided or authorized by CUCA rules and regulations in a manner that is compliant with College policies and procedures.

6.9 Information Security

CUCA security policy involves several layers from physical access control to firewall and virus protection.

a. The base security mechanism is to have dedicated servers for different college functions mounted on the intranet.

b. The intranet will be provided with appropriate firewall software, which will be automatically updated.

c. Each computer on the network will be provided with an individual firewall and virus protection.

d. Each staff member and student will have a separate email account but all email will be filtered through proprietary software that monitors such things as Spam.

e. All servers will be automatically backed up regularly and copies kept off-site.

f. Students and faculty may request services to restore a given a file/s at any time.

6.10 Library

Sufficient budget allocation has been made for the seamless operation and maintenance of the College Library, which is one of the major CUCA facilities.

a. The library collection, including books, copies of bound and current periodicals, has sufficient size and quality to ensure effectiveness of the instructional program of the College. The library collection will be well-maintained and regular repair work will be scheduled. Library collections will be constantly upgraded for continual improvement to meet current educational needs and trends. The library collection will also be periodically inventoried and matched with recognized collegiate library lists.

b. The library will also offer audiovisual materials appropriate for course offerings along with an assortment of electronic instructional and reference media which will form an integral part of library resources. There will be an annual budgetary allocation for the library. This budget will be applied to the purchase of books, on-line resources, periodicals, bindings, audiovisual materials, and library maintenance supplies. Circulation records that reflect student and faculty utilization of the library facilities will be maintained. A library orientation course will be available for freshman and transfer students.

c. The physical environment of the library is attractive and has adequate lighting, furniture, fixtures, equipment, and seating capacity, along with sufficient workspace for the library staff.

6.11 Classrooms

All of the classrooms at the College are air conditioned and have comfortable seating. They feature excellent technological resources including audiovisual equipment, a computer, and at least one whiteboard to facilitate excellent teaching and learning activities.

The optimum class size for undergraduate courses is 40-45 students; 20-25 students for graduate courses; and 30 maximum students for computer labs. CUCA Policy 3.10 further explains the class size policy and operating hours for classes.

6.12 Smoking Policy

The College is a smoke-free facility. Smoking is restricted to outdoor areas in only those locations providing ash receptacles. Smoking is not permitted outside the entryway to any building.

7. Academic Regulations

7.1 General Admission Requirements

BBA Programs:

The CUCA admission policy is based on a student's academic achievements in secondary school certificate or its equivalent, regardless of gender, race, color, religion, age, handicap, or national origin. CUCA will classify a successful candidate as either full- or part-time based on the number of credit hours attempted per semester. All documents presented by the applicant for admission purposes become the property of CUCA and will not be returned. If it is determined than any documents presented by the applicant are fraudulent, CUCA reserves the right to expel the student without refund of any fees paid.

MBA Programs:

For academic policies related to the MBA Program, refer to the *MBA Program Guide* 2014-2015 (November 2014).

Admission as Freshman Student

To be eligible for admission, all applicants must meet the following minimum requirements before submitting an application to the college:

a. Each applicant must complete a CUCA application form available at the Office of Admission and Registration. This form must be submitted by the deadline dates announced by CUCA and must be accompanied by a non-refundable application fee. The applicant must certify that all information submitted on the application is complete and accurate at the time of submission and confirm their understanding that misrepresentation of any information or failure to provide necessary documents may result in denial or rejection of their admission to the college.

b. The applicant must have a UAE secondary school certificate or its equivalent, as approved by the MOHESR, with an average of at least 60% (65% for vocational/technical) to satisfy the College requirement.

c. The applicant must satisfy any additional requirements for admission into the program for which they are applying. Transfer students who passed the UAE secondary school certificate with a score less than 60% can be accepted under the following conditions:

(1) They have spent a full academic year at any accredited college or university.

(2) Their CGPA must be 2.5 or above.

(3) If the conditions of items (1) or (2) above cannot be met, students will have the option of joining the Foundation program.

d. The applicant must demonstrate an acceptable competency level in English equivalent to a TOEFL score of 500 (paper-based), 173 (computer-based), (61 internet-based), or its equivalent on a standardized English language test, such as Band 5.0 for IELTS or another standardized, internationally-recognized test that is approved by the MOHESR. This condition applies to all students, including those who have previously been admitted to a non-credit bearing intensive English language program or remedial English course.

e. Those applicants who do not have the minimum required TOEFL (500 score), IELTS (5.0 score), secondary, or vocational/technical score in English, must study 20 hours of English per week in the Intensive English Program (IEP).

f. Students may only register in five General Education Program courses while enrolled in the IEP. The General Education courses are Computer Fundamentals, College Mathematics, Islamic Studies, Study Skills, and UAE Studies. They can complete the course and try to get a passing TOEFL/IELTS score. If they don't, they repeat until they pass; however, when a student achieves a passing TOEFL or IELTS score, they may exit the program at once.

The table below shows the way students in the IEP can progress through courses, along with the five General Education courses they are permitted to take:

	Pre-College English Courses		Academic Program Courses		Total Hours	
IEP Level	Study	Study Hours per	Courses	Study Hours	per Week	
	Hours	Week	Permitted	per Week	per week	
IEP 101	180	12 for 15 weeks	1 Gen Ed	3 for 15 15		
	100	180 12 101 15 weeks	I Gen Eu	weeks	10	
IEP 102	135	9 for 15 weeks	2 Gen Ed	6 for 15	15	
			JI 15 WEEKS Z GEILEU	weeks	15	
IEP 103	90	6 for 15 weeks	3 Gen Ed	9 for 15	15	
	90	U IUI I J WEEKS	5 Gen Eu	weeks	10	

Admission as a Transfer Student

a. Students applying for post-freshman admission may be considered provided they have attended at least one semester as a full-time student at another accredited university, college, or equivalent educational institution and possess a cumulative grade point average (CGPA) of 2.0 or above.

b. However, a student with a CGPA of less than 2.0 can be admitted only to a program in a field different from the one from which the student is transferring.

c. Coursework completed elsewhere may be accepted in the appropriate program at the College by meeting the following provisions:

(1) The applicant submits an official transcript showing all credits and grades earned along with a detailed description of the courses to the CUCA Office of Admission and Registration.

(2) Only coursework at a grade level of C (2.0) or higher and relevant to the degree will be accepted.

(3) Courses should bear at three credit hours; however, two or more can be combined to equal one three credit hour course. The course must also be approved by the respective department.

(4) The coursework must be equal to approximately 75-80% of the CUCA course content.

(5) No more than 50% of the total credits of the program may be accepted as transfer credit.

(6) CUCA does not accept credit twice for substantially the same course taken at two different institutions.

NOTE: Grades of the transfer courses earned at the host institution are not used in calculating the student's CGPA. To receive the status of "transfer students" they must have spent a full academic semester at an accredited college or university and completed at least 9 credit hours at the institution.

Student File

When applying for admission to CUCA, the applicant must submit the following documents which will become part of the Student File:

a. An official transcript of the secondary school certificate (or its equivalent) properly authenticated in accordance with the regulations and procedures specified by the Ministry of Education.

b. One copy of a current official passport or government-issued identity card.

c. Four recent passport-sized photographs.

d. A non-refundable application fee of AED 100.

e. Certificate of a Standardized Test of Eligibility in English (TOEFL or IELTS) or the placement test taken earlier at the college. (Certificates of TOEFL or IELTS are valid for only two years).

f. A certificate of health fitness furnished by a recognized medical establishment or a registered medical practitioner.

g. All student records must be kept in a fireproof container both on-campus and in off-site archive storage.

NOTE: All documents presented by the applicant for admission purposes become the property of CUCA and will not be returned.

UAE Secondary School Certificates (USSC)	UAE secondary school certificate or its equivalent, as approved by the MOE-HEA	60%
	Iranian Certificates: Pre-University (required) Indian Boards Certificate: Senior Secondary School Certificate, Part II	12/20 40%
	French Baccalaureate	10/20
Non-UAE Secondary School Certificates	North Africa Baccalaureate	50%
	 American Diploma: Grade 10, 11, and 12 British System Certificates (IGCSE and GCSE) are eligible for admission if: The student has passed, as a regular student, 7 subjects at the ordinary level of IGCSE or GCSE with a minimum score of C. The minimum score is D and E for subjects taken at AS Level or A Level of GCSE, respectively The 7 subjects should cover the four areas of: Mathematics, Science, Languages, and Social Sciences & Humanities or Arts The applicant must prove school attendance of at least 11 years by providing school leaving certificate 	60%

7.2 Credit by Examination

CUCA does not grant credit for life experience or for study at non-collegiate or nonaccredited post-secondary institutions.

7.3 Registration

a. Students are scheduled for classes only after a one-on-one meeting with their Academic Advisor. Registration and pre-registration take place each semester. The student must apply for registration on the prescribed form listing the subjects to be studied during the semester. The last date for registration is posted by the Registrar.

b. Registration will not be considered complete until the course fees and all other balances due have been paid. Students will not receive credits for courses in which they are not registered. Inquiries regarding registration should be directed to the Registrar's Office.

Late Registration

Students must register for classes by the deadline dates specified on the academic calendar. A late registration fee will be assessed for all students who register after the deadline for normal registration and up to the end of the second week of class, after which students will not be permitted to attend further classes.

7.4 Add/Drop Procedure

Students may make schedule changes without financial penalty during each term's Add/Drop Period in the first two weeks of the semester to add or drop a course. Adding or dropping courses is not allowed outside of this period, and there are no refunds for classes dropped after the end of the Add/Drop Period. Each Add/Drop form requires a processing fee. Courses may only be added or dropped with the permission of the student's Academic Advisor.

7.5 Withdrawal Procedure

a. There is no academic penalty for withdrawing from courses prior to the ninth week of a course in a course offered in fall or spring semester, or prior to the fourth week of a course offered in summer semester. In these cases, the letter W will be noted in the student's file alongside the course. The student's CGPA will not be affected. However, if students withdraw after the second week, they must pay the full amount for repeating the course whenever they decide to take the course again.

b. If students withdraw from a course after the second week, CUCA will award a grade of WP or WF, which means the student would have achieved either a passing or failing score on the date of withdrawal from the course. A score of WP shall have no effect on the GPA, but a score of WF shall count as an F (0.0 grade points). Thus, the decision of timing for withdrawal from a course is important should it become apparent to the student that they are failing the course.

c. Any student leaving a course must complete a special withdrawal form. Failure to complete this form indicates the student is continuing in the course and they will be awarded grades in accordance with academic policy. The withdrawal form must be signed by the student along with their Academic Advisor and submitted to the Registrar's Office before the end of the week in which they are withdrawing during spring or fall semester and before the end of the fourth week during summer semester.

d. Aside from voluntary withdrawal from a course as described above, a faculty member may require a student to withdraw from a course as a result of failure to complete required assignments or misconduct. As in the case of voluntary withdrawal, a mark of W, WP, or WF will be awarded, based on the date of withdrawal and student performance.

7.6 Academic Advising

Every student is assigned an Academic Advisor for the duration of their degree program.

The Advisor assists students in selecting courses for each semester. In addition, the Advisor is available to the student on a daily basis by appointment or, in emergency cases, non-scheduled sessions.

Advisors discuss professional goal-setting, answer questions about academic programs, review student registration forms for classes, and make referrals to College and off-campus resources as needed.

The optimum advisor-to-student ratio is 1 advisor to 35 students.

7.7 First Year Orientation

a. Entering freshmen at CUCA must attend an orientation session during their first semester. This orientation is designed to acquaint students with the many aspects of college life in general and with this institution in particular.

b. The orientation also familiarizes students with CUCA policies and procedures. Students receive important information about CUCA student services, learning resources, job opportunities, job placement procedures, financial aid, student activities, and career counseling.

c. Transfer students from universities which use the credit-hour system who enter with the status of sophomore, junior, or senior are not required to attend orientation.

7.8 Course Load

A student may select courses and register for classes during the registration period only after receiving a Letter of Acceptance from the Office of the Registrar. Once a student receives a letter of acceptance from the Registrar's Office, they are eligible to select courses and register for classes during the registration period.

The Academic Advisor must approve the course load that the student selected.

The maximum number of credit hours for which full-time students can register is 18 (6 courses) and the minimum number of credit hours is 9 (3 courses).

Only students with a CGPA of 2.5 to 3.79 can register for 18 credit hours (6 courses) per semester.

Only students with a CGPA of 3.8 and above can register for 21 credit hours (7 courses) per semester. Therefore, no student will register for 21 credit hours (7 courses) in the last semester unless their CGPA is 3.8 and above.

Students who take graduation project or capstone courses can only take 4 courses. The total number of courses including the graduation projects or capstone courses must not exceed 5 courses.

A student may register for less than 9 credit hours (3 courses) if the number of credits needed to complete graduation requirements is less than 9.

A student can only register for 6 credit hours (2 courses) in a summer session.

The minimum number of credit hours per semester for a part-time student is 6 (2 courses) and the maximum number is 9 credit hours (3 courses).

Any case that exceeds the prescribed registration limits requires the approval of both the Academic Advisor and the Department Chair.

7.9 Credit Hours

Courses are calculated in credit-hours. Each course carries a certain number of credits which are awarded after its successful completion. Credit hours usually equal the number of hours spent in class per week. One credit hour is typically 50 minutes of lecture given weekly for a minimum of fifteen weeks. Two or three hours of tutorial or laboratory work per week is the equivalent of one credit hour.

7.10 Academic Year

The academic year consists of two 16-week semesters including time set aside for holidays and examinations. One or two summer sessions may also be offered. In each semester, classes begin with the first instructional period of the first day.

- a. The fall semester begins in September of each year.
- b. The spring semester begins in February of each year.
- c. The summer sessions take place between June and September each year.

The Registrar publishes the academic calendar for the next academic year shortly before the final exam period of the second semester. All religious and national holidays in the United Arab Emirates are official holidays for CUCA.

7.11 Grading System

Course Grading System. Students are awarded letter grades for each course in which they have enrolled. The letter grade reflects student performance in a particular course. The minimum passing grade in an undergraduate course is D; for a graduate course the minimum passing grade is C. However, BBA students must achieve a CGPA of 2.0 (C) to graduate while MBA students must achieve a CGPA of 3.0 (B) to graduate. (For MBA-specific academic policies, refer to the *MBA Program Guide 2014-2015*). Grades are awarded as shown in the following table:

Grade Range	Symbol	Grade Points	Description
90-100	A	4.0	Outstanding
85-89	B+	3.5	Excellent
80-84	В	3.0	Excellent
75-79	C+	2.5	Catiofactory
70-74	С	2.0	 Satisfactory
65-69	D+	1.5	Marginal
60-64	D	1.0	— Marginal
Below 60	F	0.0	Unsatisfactory
N/A	W	N/A	Withdraw
N/A		N/A	Incomplete

Incomplete Coursework. An instructor may award a grade of I (Incomplete) for a class during the semester in accordance with the following procedures:

When the reason for non-completion of the course is illness, accident, etc., the student must provide the appropriate certificates which will then be attached to the application for award of an I grade.

An I grade is awarded only if a student has the possibility of passing the course.

An instructor who awards an I grade will write a "Memorandum for the Record" (MFR) and issue one copy to the student and one copy to the Registrar for placement in the student file. The MFR will explain:

- Reasons for awarding the I grade
- Assignments or other coursework required to complete the course
- Method for submitting the coursework to the instructor
- Both the faculty member and student must sign and date the MFR

Responsibility for submitting the required work to complete the course falls on the student. If the work is not completed within eight weeks of the last day of the semester or the mutually-agreed upon date, the student's grade in the course will automatically be changed to F.

Grade Point Average. The grade point average (GPA) reflects student achievement in one semester. The cumulative point average (CGPA) reflects student achievement in all semesters of coursework attempted. GPA and CGPA are evaluated as follows:

Grade Point	Evaluation
3.6 and above	Outstanding
3.0 to less than 3.6	Excellent
2.5 to less than 3	Satisfactory
2.0 to less than 2.5	Marginal
Less than 2.0	Unsatisfactory

Calculating the Cumulative Grade Point Average:

The GPA is calculated by multiplying the grade of each course by the number of its credit hours and dividing the total by the number of total credit hours taken in the semester. The CGPA is calculated by multiplying the grade of each course by the number of its credit hours and dividing the total of all courses by the number of total credit hours taken for all semesters. By contrast, the GPA is the average of grade points for all courses in one semester, whether the course was passed or failed. As mentioned earlier, the CGPA is the average of grade points for all courses in all semesters. Both GPA and CGPA are rounded to the nearest decimal units. Calculate the GPA and CGPA using the following formula:

GPA = Total credit hours per course x Grades received per course Total of credit hours per semester

CGPA = Total credit hours per course x Grades received per course Total credit hours taken during all semesters

Course	Number of Credits	Grade	Grade Points
College Mathematics	3	4	12
English I	3	4	12
UAE Studies	3	2	6
Islamic Studies	3	3	9
Computer Fundamentals	3	3	9
Introduction to Sociology	3	2	6
Total	18		54

Example:

$$GPA = \frac{(3x4 + 3x4 + 3x2 + 3x3 + 3x3 + 3x2)}{3 + 3 + 3 + 3 + 3 + 3 + 3} = \frac{54}{18} = 3.0$$

Grade Appeals. Students have the right to appeal a final grade of any course. Use the following procedure:

Complete and submit an appeal form to the Registrar within <u>15</u> calendar days of final grade posting.

The Registrar submits the appeal forms to the responsible academic department. The responsible department will then respond within $\underline{7}$ calendar days. The decision of the academic department is final.

Change in Grade. The following procedure will be followed by all faculty members when it becomes necessary to change a student grade previously submitted to the Registrar's Office:

Grades for a course must be based only on work performed before the end of each semester. Grade changes are permitted only in cases of errors in calculating or recording grades.

The change of grade desired, together with adequate explanation, will be submitted by the faculty member concerned to the department chair.

If the Department Chair approves the request for change of grade, the request will be submitted to the Dean.

If the request is approved by the Dean, the change of grade will be reported to the Registrar to make the appropriate change on the student record and notify both the student and the faculty member. Forms are available in the departmental offices.

7.12 Attendance

Students must attend each class meeting. Absence never exempts a student from the work required for satisfactory completion of courses. Excessive absences from any course will result in:

- First Warning for absence of 10% of total class hours
- Second Warning for absence of 20% of total class hours
- Final Warning for absence of 25% of total class hours (student is subject to forced withdrawal from the course)

Any exception to this policy must be approved by the Department Chair.

Rules for Attendance

a. A student will be marked absent but may be allowed into the classroom if:

(1) The student is more than 10 minutes late from the start of the class for the first class period of the day

(2) More than five minutes late from the beginning of class for all other class periods

b. A student who arrives after the start of a class but within the time limits shown above will be permitted to attend the class but marked as absent if such tardiness continues beyond three occasions. c. Those students who remain absent on the pretext of attending rehearsals for College or intercollegiate programs, etc., will be marked absent unless they obtain written permission from the appropriate faculty member or student services counselor.

d. Leaving the classroom to answer telephone calls is not allowed.

e. Under extraordinary circumstances where a student's attendance falls below 80% but not less than 70%, they may be permitted to take part in final examinations with permission from the Department Chair. An administrative fee mayl be charged for this purpose.

f. Department Chairs and faculty members must ensure compliance with the above rules by managing daily attendance records and through other checks or monitoring procedures.

7.13 Assessment and Evaluation

a. Student performance will be assessed continuously through coursework, assignments, seminars, tests, quizzes, case studies, and examinations.

b. The continuous assessment components for each course will count toward 60-70% of the marks.

c. The end-of-semester final examination will count for the remaining 30-40% of the marks.

d. Failure to complete a final examination without authorization results in a grade of F. Students who fail a course must re-register and pay the appropriate fees.

7.14 Examination Policy

a. The final examination period shall consist of six scheduled days during the 16th week of the fall or spring semester, or the last three days of the summer semester.

b. The period for each final examination is a maximum of two hours.

c. No student is required to take more than two final examinations in one day. Students initially scheduled for more than two examinations in one calendar day are entitled to reschedule any examination after coordinating with the Registrar and course instructor. The rescheduled examination must be completed during the final examination period.

d. No tests or examinations can be given on any of the seven calendar days before the first day of final examinations, except for laboratory examinations.

Missed Examinations

a. If circumstances beyond student control cause the student to miss a scheduled exam, the College will permit the student to take the missed examination.

b. The student must provide the Student Affairs Department and Registrar with valid and verifiable evidence. Additional fees may apply.

c. The Registrar coordinates the examination date with the course instructor.

d. The student must take a missed exam within two weeks of its originally scheduled date.

Academic Integrity

One of the main objectives of CUCA is to provide quality undergraduate education. All members of the College community are required show commitment to this objective, including an obligation to promote the highest standards of integrity in study, instruction, and evaluation.

Dishonesty or unethical behavior has no place at CUCA. The integrity of the academic process requires fair and impartial evaluation by the faculty and honest academic conduct and effort by its students.

Therefore, students are expected to conduct themselves at the highest levels of responsibility while fulfilling the requirements of their studies. Similarly, the faculty has a responsibility to make clear to students the evaluation standards that apply and the resources that students may use in a given course.

Definitions

Plagiarism

This violation occurs when a student takes the words or ideas of another and uses them as if they were their own. This can happen in three ways:

- A student copies the words of another person without using quotation marks and without giving reference to the source
- A student puts the ideas of another person into the student's own words but does not give reference to the source
- A student duplicates the structure of thought or organization of another person but does not give reference to the source

When students make use of concepts or words from an outside source, whether in the form of a direct quotation or of paraphrase, they must give credit to the original source for each idea by footnote, parenthetical reference, or other bibliographic technique acceptable to the instructor.

Academic integrity presumes that all work submitted as a part of academic requirements is the product of the student submitting it unless credit is given with proper bibliographic techniques as prescribed by the course instructor.

Collusion

Collusion occurs when someone else writes all or any part of a student's paper.

Cheating

Cheating includes, but is not limited to, a student looking at another's work or using unauthorized materials during a test or written assignment.

Cheating, plagiarizing, or otherwise falsifying the results of study is prohibited. These policies apply not only to examinations, but to all work handed-in, such as papers, reports, solutions to problems, tapes, films, and computer programs, unless authorized by the instructor.

Plagiarism Detection Software

CUCA uses *TurnItIn* plagiarism detection software to verify the originality of student work. This software provides an important first step for instructors in their evaluation of student work. The process for the use of *TurnItIn* is as follows:

a. The CUCA IT staff conducts initial training on the use of *TurnItIn* for all faculty members in the computer labs. They are also available to assist with any questions or technical problems encountered.

b. Instructors provide brief instructions to students on how they use *Turnitin* to verify the originality of written work.

Faculty members are responsible for providing students with an explanation of the freedom they may exercise in collaboration with other students or in the use of outside sources.

This includes the student's own work prepared and submitted for another course, during group study sessions, and in take-home examinations.

Any doubts on the part of students about what constitutes academic dishonesty should be discussed with and will be resolved by the course instructor.

Academic Dishonesty

The policy for academic dishonesty is outlined below.

All academic work and materials submitted for assessment must be the work of the student.

Cheating is not only limited to copying from the work of others and providing unauthorized assistance, but also includes the use of devices or other surreptitious means for the purpose of obtaining falsely-derived passing scores on examinations.

Students are prohibited from submitting any material prepared by or purchased from another person or company.

All students are expected to take the process of advanced education seriously and act responsibly. Students who violate examination or assignment rules are subject disciplinary action.

Penalties for Academic Dishonesty

If a faculty member has reasonable grounds to conclude that a student has plagiarized, committed collusion, or cheated, the faculty member may choose one or more of the following options:

- Report a grade of F for the work submitted (exam or assignment)
- Report a grade of F for the course
- Apply other disciplinary action against the student which may lead to the student's suspension or dismissal from the College

Procedure

- The faculty member who discovers the academic integrity violation completes a report describing the disciplinary infraction incident
- Submit the report to the Dean through the Department Chair
- After review, the Dean decides on the appropriate action to take based on the particular case (as shown in the options listed in the preceding section)
- Distribute copies of the violation report to the student, faculty member, Department Chair, and the Registrar
- The Registrar places a copy of the report in the student file

Verification Process

Students who deny dishonesty must reconstruct or reproduce the suspected work in a way agreeable to and under the supervision of the faculty member to prove that no dishonesty has occurred.

If the student declines the opportunity to reconstruct or reproduce the suspected work, the matter is ended, and the faculty may impose one or more of the penalties listed above.

Students who produce what constitutes proof that the work is indeed their own, and the faculty still disagrees, the student may then file a grievance.

Plagiarism Software Training and Use

CUCA uses *TurnItIn* anti-plagiarism software to verify the originality of student work. This software provides an important first step for instructors in the evaluation of student work. a. The CUCA IT staff conducts initial training in the computer labs on the use of *TurnItIn* for all faculty members. They are also available to assist with questions or problems encountered during the academic year.

b. Instructors provide brief instructions to students on how they use *Turnitin* to verify the originality of written research work.

7.15 Academic Honors

The Registrar issues the Student Academic Honors List at the end of each semester. To be placed on this list, a student must have:

- Registered for at least 15 credits and receive no failing grades
- A minimum semester GPA of 3.6
- No recorded or pending disciplinary action

7.16 Good Academic Standing

A student is considered to be in good academic standing if they maintain at least a 2.0 CGPA for all degree credit courses attempted at CUCA. A CGPA of 2.0 or above is required for graduation.

Academic Probation

a. A student whose CGPA falls below 2.0 by the end of the second semester, or in any subsequent semester, is placed on academic probation.

b. Students on academic probation are expected to raise their CGPA to at least 2.0 in the following two semesters and may not register for more than 12 credit hours.

c. Students who fail to achieve the required CGPA within the specified period will be asked to transfer to another specialization within the College.

d. Students who fail to remove the probation by the end of the following two semesters after specialization transfer will be dismissed from the College.

e. Students with a CGPA of at least 1.9 and with at least 75% of the credit hours required for graduation, he will not be dismissed from the College but will be permitted to continue in the same major until they exceed the maximum period of study.

f. Summer sessions do not count in the probationary period.

Academic Suspension

A student who begins the semester on academic probation and whose CGPA at the end of that semester is not at least 1.5 after 18 attempted semester credits (or at least 1.7 after 33 attempted semester credits, or at least 1.9 after 48 attempted

semester credits) will be academically suspended from registering at CUCA for at least one semester.

Readmission of Academically Suspended Students

Suspended students may apply to the Registrar for one-time readmission by submitting a letter detailing their activities since the suspension took effect and providing rationale for why they believe their academic performance will improve in the future. The Registrar will refer the application to the appropriate Department Chair. If the Department Chair is convinced of the student's potential to succeed, they will advise the Registrar to grant the student one-time readmission for the next semester's registration. Students in this category will be reinstated on academic probation.

Final Academic Dismissal

If, after one-time readmission, a student who is on academic probation at the beginning of a semester completes that semester with a cumulative GPA that is not at least 1.5 after 18 attempted semester credits (or at least 1.7 after 33 attempted semester credits, or at least 1.9 after 48 attempted semester credits), that student receives final academic dismissal and will not be readmitted to CUCA in the future.

7.17 Study Time Limitation

The minimum and maximum periods of study at the College are as follows:

a. The minimum study period is eight regular semesters. However it is possible for a student to graduate with a minimum time period of seven regular semesters by attending summer sessions.

b. The maximum period is 14 regular semesters for all degree programs which normally require eight regular semesters for graduation.

c. The minimum study period for transfer students is four regular semesters for all degree programs which normally require eight regular semesters for graduation.

d. The maximum study period for the transferred student depends on the number of approved transfer credits. This period can be calculated as a ratio of the maximum study period mentioned in paragraph 3.18b above.

7.18 Graduation

a. To be eligible for graduation, students must satisfy each of the following requirements:

(1) Satisfactorily complete the curriculum in which the student is registered.

(2) Achieve a CGPA of at least 2.00.

b. The student becomes a degree candidate when the Department Chair, at the request of the Student Advisor, certifies the student has completed all program and College requirements for graduation and consequently recommends the student to the faculty to confer the appropriate degree.

c. If a failed course has been removed from the curriculum or is an Specialization, the student may meet graduation requirements by the substitution of another course only with the written approval of the Department Chair.

d. With the written approval of the chair of the degree-granting department or program, a student who has completed all but six hours for graduation may complete them off-campus.

e. Students must satisfy all financial obligations to the College within the time specified by the Registrar. Certificates for graduation and transcripts will be withheld on past-due accounts and loans.

NOTE: CUCA is committed to ensuring that students will finish the program they started even if, after accreditation, the College must close for unforeseen reasons. See Policy 9.3, *Teach Out Policy.*

Diplomas

A student who has fulfilled all of the academic requirements of the program and has settled all of monetary and administrative obligations with CUCA will receive a student copy of their Academic Transcript together with an official Diploma from the College. This will occur only after all scores and relevant material for graduation have been provided to the Registrar's Office.

Academic Transcripts

a. Transcripts created from a student's permanent record are either official or unofficial.

b. An official transcript is a copy of the student's permanent record, printed on an CUCA transcript form, bearing its official seal or stamp, and signature of the Registrar.

c. The official transcript is mailed directly to the individual who needs official confirmation of the student's academic achievements at CUCA. Official transcripts are typically sent to a college or university, a state authority, an employer, or to an organization providing financial aid. Only in extraordinary circumstances will an official copy be sent directly to a student.

d. An unofficial transcript is a copy of the permanent record made for the personal use of the student which does not bear the College's stamp or seal and is sent directly to the student.

Student Permanent Record

Each Student Permanent Record maintained at CUCA includes:

- Basic student identification information
- Listing of all coursework accepted by CUCA for transfer
- Current listing of CUCA courses attempted and completed
- Grades, credits, and GPAs earned each semester
- Required entries for academic probation, suspension, or dismissal
- Notation of degree completion for a student who has graduated

This student record is considered to be permanent in that it will be kept as an active record perpetually, i.e., it will never be disposed of by the institution. It is the permanent and official record of all grades, credits, and diplomas earned by the student at CUCA.

7.19 Student Record Release Policy

No one shall have access to, nor will the institution disclose, any information from a student's permanent academic record without the written consent of the concerned student. Student record access is granted only to authorized individuals at CUCA who have an official requirement to view information about courses completed and grades earned by the student in order to fulfill their administrative responsibilities and assist students with registration, advising, degree completion, and career counseling.

7.20 After Graduation

Program graduates should be able to work in the following professions:

- Administrator
- Accountant
- Marketing
- Business Analyst
- Budget Analyst
- HR Officer
- Financial Analyst
- Hotel Management

- Retail Management
- Banking
- Consulting
- Insurance Officer
- Marketing Researcher
- Investment Officer
- Marketing Representative
- Hospitality and Tourism Consultant
 Hotel Operations Manager

- Sales Representative
- Financial Accountant
- Management Accountant
- Transaction Officer
- Wholesale Manager
- Administration Supervisor
- Tourism Manager

Finance and Accounting graduates can expect to find employment in many of the positions listed below:

- Auditing
- Management Accountant
- Financial Accountant
- Taxation Accountant
- Budget Analyst

- Public Accountant
- Government Accountant
- Banking
- Brokerage
- Insurance

- Investments
- Real Estate
- Public Sector
- Private Sector

Hospitality and Tourism Management graduates can expect to find employment in many of the occupations listed below:

- Hotel General Manager
- Rooms Executive
- Front Desk Manager
- Housekeeping Supervisor
- Concierge
- Reservations Specialist
- Events Manager
- Cruise Director

- Tourism Director
- Travel Agency Manager
- Travel Guide
- Tourism Director
- Travel Agency Manager
- Communications Director
- Guest Relations Manager
- Food and Beverage Manager

- Maintenance Manager
- Purchasing Manager
- Resort Manager
- Catering Director
- Hotel Auditor
- Facility Manager
- Sales Director
- Public Relations Manager

Human Resource Management graduates can expect to find employment in many of the positions listed below:

- Compensation Manager
- Benefits Manager
- Staffing Specialist
- Contract Specialist
- Employee Welfare Manager
- Government HR Manager
- Employee Communications
- Employee Orientation
- Recruiting and Retention Manager
- Labor Relations Manager
- Job Analyst
- Training and Development Manager
- Human Capital Manager
- Strategic HR Manager
- Safety Program Manager
- HR Data Manager
- Statistical Analyst

Management Information Systems graduates can expect to find employment in many of the industries listed below:

- Systems Analyst
- Network and Internet Manager
- Webmaster
- Network Security Administrator
- Project Manager

- Network Administrator
- Web Developer
- Software Engineer
- Technical Consultant
- Communications Network Designer
- Business Systems Analyst
- Systems Project Manager
- Database Analyst
- Assistant Analyst

Marketing graduates can expect to find employment in many of the industries listed below:

- Advertising Agencies
- Airlines
- Banks
- Colleges and Universities
- Communications
- Computer Industry
- Government Agencies
- Healthcare Providers

- Hospitals
- Insurance Companies
- International Companies
- Marketing Firms
- Marketing and Research
- Management Consulting
- Manufacturing
- Media Outlets

- Non-Profit Organizations
- Private Industry
- Publishing Companies
- Retail Businesses
- Securities Brokers
- Television
- Travel and Tourism

Catalog

8. Financial Information

8.1 Tuition and Fees

CUCA charges the following tuition and fees for registered students:

Application • Admission • Registration	Fees:			
Application and Admission Fee (Undergraduate Programs)	AED 1500	One-time fee submitted with application; non-refundable		
Application and Admission Fee (Graduate Programs)	AED 1300	One-time fee submitted with application; non-refundable		
Application and Admission Fee (International Students)	AED 3000	One-time fee submitted with application; non-refundable		
Registration Fee	AED 500	Per semester (fall and spring)		
Registration Fee	AED 300	Per session (summer))		
Tuition Fees:				
BBA Finance & Accounting, Marketing, MIS, HRM (English)	AED 825	Due at the time of course registration (3 credit hours x AED 825 = AED 2475 per course)		
Law and HRM (Arabic)	AED 850	Due at the time of course registration (3 credit hours x AED 850 = AED 2550 per course)		
Public Relations & Advertising (PRA)	AED 825	Due at the time of course registration (3 credit hours x AED 825 = AED 2475 per course)		
Hospitality & Tourism Management	AED 750	Due at the time of course registration (3 credit hours x AED 750 = AED 2250 per course)		
Professional Diploma in Teaching (Arabic)	AED 900	Due at the time of course registration (3 credit hours x AED 900 = AED 2700 per course)		
Other Fees:				
Student Activity Fee	AED 250	Per semester (fall and spring)		
Student Activity Fee	AED 100	Per session (summer)		
Credit Transfer Fee	AED 200			
Late Registration Fee	AED 200	Per course		
Computer Lab and Internet Fee	AED 300	Per semester (fall and spring)		
Visa Processing Fee	AED 2000			
Visa Deposit	AED 3000	Refundable at the time of visa cancellation and after completing one year of study at CUCA		
Intensive English Program • Consists	of 3 Levels			
Level 1	AED 5000	Duration is one semester (180 study hours)		
Level 2	AED 200	Duration is one semester (135 study hours)		
Level 3	AED 200	Duration is one semester (90 study hours)		
Intensive English Program for HRM (Arabic) and PRA (Arabic) • Consists of 2 Levels				
Level 1	AED 3750	Duration is one semester (112 study hours)		
Level 2	AED 3500	Duration is one semester (90 study hours)		

NOTE: CUCA may charge fees for additional services and facilities as required, and may increase fees at any time without prior notice.

Important Payment Information

Students must pay at least one-third of the total semester fees in cash, and submit two postdated checks. The date of the second check should be payable <u>before</u> the beginning of the final exams as shown on the academic calendar.

8.2 Refunds

Application and Admission Fees are non-refundable.

Tuition Fees

Students who withdraw before program commencement will be refunded 100% of the tuition fee paid.

Students who withdraw within one week of program commencement will forfeit the first installment of the tuition fee. The College will return the postdated check for the second installment of the tuition fee.

The entire first semester tuition fee is non-refundable for students who withdraw after one week from program commencement. This includes the PDC.

A student who is suspended or expelled from the College for disciplinary reasons forfeits all rights to any refunds.

8.3 Financial Aid

CUCA offers the following discounts and scholarships for students:

A discount of 25% on the tuition fee for brothers, sisters, or spouses studying at CUCA. (Both family members must register in the same semester in order to take advantage of this discount).

The *Individual Needs Scholarship* is a 15% reduction of the tuition fee. (This type of scholarship is awarded on a case-by-case basis. Students must present evidence of financial hardship to the relevant committee for approval).

The *Merit Scholarship* is a 15% reduction of the tuition fee. (CUCA awards this scholarship to new students with a secondary school score of 90% and above. Currently-registered students who earn a CGPA of 3.50 and above in the previous semester also qualify for this award).

For *Individual Needs* and *Merit Scholarships* to remain in effect, students must maintain class attendance of not less than 80% and a CGPA of not less than 3.50 in each semester.

For more information on student financial aid and scholarships, students may visit the Registration Office or use the following contact methods:

Email: registrar@cuca.ae Phone: +971.6.731.5000 Website: www.cuca.ae

9. Student Support Services

9.1 Career Services

The Career Services Office at CUCA provides advice and information to students and alumni as a unit of the Student Affairs Department. Career Services strives to provide CUCA students and graduates with a clear purpose and solid decisionmaking required to be confident, selective, and competitive in managing careers and further academic pursuits.

Career Services accomplishes its mission by supporting students, alumni, faculty and staff, and collaborating with employers.

Career Services offers the best possible suggestions and advice with access to the most current employment information and career resources available. They also offer on-line interaction for clients who are off-campus.

The Career Services Office provides the following support for students and alumni:

Career Selection Planning Career Interest Assistance Career Assessment Tools Internship Opportunities Job Search Techniques CVs and Cover Letters Employment Interviews Employment Workshops Alumni Directory Links to Employer Databases Links to Employment Agencies Career Opportunities Overseas

The Career Services Office also cooperates with employers to furnish these opportunities:

- Ask employers to post key contact information for student and alumni access
- Invite private companies and public agencies to participate in Career Services job fairs and workshops
- Schedule on-campus interviews for organizations who wish to hire CUCA students and alumni
- Encourage employers to list job openings and internship opportunities with the Career Services Office
- Enable employers to search student and alumni resumes posted at the Center for potential internships and full-time positions

Career Services regularly engages the College faculty and staff to update them on the additions to the services it offers and to encourage the faculty to remind students to take advantage of the services it offers. The faculty and staff are also a good source for providing employment referrals to both students and potential employers.

The Career Services Office employs a staff with the appropriate expertise to fulfill its mission. Career Services is determined to fulfill the overall CUCA mission through its top-quality services.

9.2 Counseling

The purpose of counseling is to assist students in understanding and resolving their educational, vocational, and personal problems. The Student Affairs Department conducts basic counseling for students.

The Student Affairs Department provides confidential counseling services and advising to CUCA students. The goal is to help students reduce stress, maximize opportunities for academic and personal success, enhance personal development, and make important life changes.

All administrators, faculty, and staff should refer students to the Student Affairs Department for counseling services when necessary.

9.3 New Student Orientation

Student orientation programs are designed to help freshman, transfer, and non-traditional students adjust to the academic and social life of the College.

The primary purpose of new student orientation is to help students understand the nature of the College, the educational opportunities available to them, the mission, vision, objectives, and core values of the College, and how CUCA operates as an institution of higher education.

It is also intended to permit students to participate in placement testing, participate in academic advising, and to inform them about matters relating to student registration, campus activities, and other aspects of college life in general.

9.4 Food Services

All CUCA students may use the food service facilities provided at the campus.

9.5 Health Care

CUCA has a Healthcare Clinic located near the reception area on the ground floor of the campus available for use by all students, faculty, and staff. The operating hours are Sunday through Thursday from 9:30 am to 2:30 pm, and 6:30 to 9:30 pm.

9.6 Transportation

CUCA provides transportation for students in air-conditioned shuttle buses to and from the College campus.

9.7 Sports Activities

A multipurpose gym, accommodating some sports facilities and an outdoor recreation area are available at the College campus. In addition, the Student Affairs Department organizes, implements, and supervises athletic events at the college, and develops collaboration with other institutions in Ajman and the surrounding area for various student competitions.

9.8 Social and Cultural Activities

The Student Affairs Department organizes, implements, and supervises all social, cultural, and entertainment programs for CUCA students. Its main objective is to help students to develop their interests and abilities, and to practice their hobbies through a variety of programs and activities. The College places great emphasis on these extracurricular activities. It seeks to help students to develop their many talents and abilities plus make good use of their leisure time by forming student cultural and scientific societies.

The College also encourages students to meet each other in the friendly atmosphere of its surroundings. Almost every academic department has a student society or club, the purpose of which is to unite students and have them participate to accomplish a set of academic objectives that enrich student life. To this end, the academic departments organize lectures, present book and cultural exhibits, celebrate national occasions, and support intramural sports activities.

CUCA emphasizes that participating in organizations and clubs is an effective means of establishing interpersonal relationships, developing leadership skills, and generally enhancing the overall academic programs.

9.9 Spiritual Facilities

The College has on-campus prayer rooms for both males and females.

9.10 Student Council

The primary purpose of the Student Council is to serve as a recognized forum for student opinion and to take part in College governance. It also has a major role in assisting the College with its community engagement efforts. The Student Council is elected annually by the student body.

The Student Council operates within the laws of the United Arab Emirates and follows the procedures established and adopted by CUCA.

Activities

The activities of the Student Council include the following:

- Assisting CUCA in identifying the interests, programs, and goals of students
- Communicating the interests, programs, and goals students to the College administration
- Assisting CUCA in providing students with extracurricular programs to meet student needs

Elections

The elections are conducted according to the Election Code of the Student Council.

9.11 Student Publication Policy

CUCA supports an atmosphere of free and responsible discussion along with the use of media throughout the education process. However, all student publications financed and published by CUCA must conform to the standards and norms of responsible journalism. These publications must not contain libelous, indecent, or harassing material in any form. These same publication policies apply when deciding what material can be included on the CUCA website developed and managed by students. The President has the ultimate authority to determine the acceptability of any questionable material in student publications.

9.12 Visitors

Visitors are not permitted in classrooms, non-instructional, or student areas of the campus facility without approval from the management. Visitors may not pass beyond Campus Reception without an official escort.

9.13 Change of Address

Students must notify the Administration Office immediately in the event of any address or name change. The Administration Office forwards this information to the appropriate academic and administrative departments.

10. Curriculum

10.1 General Education

Requirements and Philosophy

CUCA degree programs are designed to provide students with both a specialized and a liberal education. Through a specialized education, students obtain some depth of knowledge in an academic discipline and a career area. A liberal education enables students to develop both a basis and context for their specialized studies and for their lives within and beyond college. The following paragraphs apply to the *liberal education* or what is most often called the *General Education* component of the bachelor's degree programs offered at CUCA.

General Education (GE) is enabling education. At its best, GE enables students to develop academic skills, acquire liberal knowledge, shape individual values, and apply all three (skills, knowledge, and values) in their academic, professional, personal, and societal lives. General studies programs are typically delivered to provide students with instruction in these areas. At CUCA, the GE program is committed to this same mission.

The GE program focuses on fundamental academic skills. These skills are the basic enablers of education. They include the language skills of reading, writing, speaking, and listening in both English and Arabic, critical thinking skills, mathematical and statistical skills, information technology skills, and research skills. They make it possible for students to acquire and create knowledge, and subsequently enable students to assess existing values and to develop new ones. Academic skills are, moreover, the vehicles for critical analysis and synthesis of ideas and attitudes. They are, in fact, the primary means of communication.

The liberal knowledge component of the GE program concerns itself, in broad terms, with the intellectual context of specialized studies and with life both during and after college.

This context includes several separate yet interrelated areas of knowledge where students will inevitably exercise choices and be required to make well-informed judgments. In their liberal studies, therefore, students acquire knowledge of basic concepts and current thinking in the physical and biological sciences, the social and behavioral sciences, and the arts and humanities. They also begin to understand the interrelationship of these disciplines and, indeed, of all knowledge and experience.

At CUCA, the GE program asks students to deal directly with their own values and with values other than their own.

The skills, knowledge, and values developed by students in the GE program are clearly applicable to their academic, professional, personal, and social lives. They enable students to improve their quality-of-life not only during but also after they complete their academic studies. Ultimately, this is the true measure of their success along with the success of CUCA.

An education is to be valued. It is the key to individual development and the very substance of civilization. CUCA, through its curriculum, faculty, facilities, and leadership, makes the enrichment of individual lives and of civilization in general possible through its degree programs. Fundamental to this enrichment is the GE component. Also key to this enrichment is the willingness of students to understand what is offered to them by the College in GE and to take responsibility for their own learning in the program.

Learning Goals:

- 1. Develop and continually improve oral and written communication skills.
- 2. Increase awareness of Islamic culture, ethics, and personal values.
- 3. Acquire well-rounded general knowledge skills in order to function effectively in modern society.
- 4. Develop problem-solving skills for use in both academic and professional settings.
- 5. Acquire and use information literacy skills.
- 6. Maintain a quest for lifelong learning and personal development.

Learning Outcomes:

- 1. Use information technology in business.
- 2. Solve mathematical and science problems.
- 3. Think critically, ethically, and culturally.
- 4. Demonstrate English literacy.
- 5. Practice effective study habits for personal and professional development.

General Education Courses

30 Credit Hours

NOTE: All courses in the General Education program are required and are usually completed within the first two years of study (semesters 1 through 4).

COURSE CODE	COURSE NAME	CREDIT HOURS	LAB
INFORMAT	FION TECHNOLOGY		
CIS 101	Computer Fundamentals	3	\checkmark
	Total Credit Hours	3	
MATHEMA	TICS		
MTH 101	College Mathematics	3	
	Total Credit Hours	3	
SCIENCE			
ENV 201	Environmental Science	3	
	Total Credit Hours	3	
SOCIAL SO	CIENCES		
SOC 101	Introduction to Sociology	3	
	Total Credit Hours	3	
HUMANITI	ES, LANGUAGE, AND OTHER COUF	RSES	
ENG 101	English I	3	
ENG 102	English II	3	
HUM 101	Critical Thinking	3	
REL 201	Islamic Studies	3	
SSS 101	Study Skills	3	
UAE 201	UAE Studies	3	
	Total Credit Hours	30	
Total General Education Courses		10	
	Total General Education Credit Hours	30	

10.2 Business Administration

Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA)

Majors: Finance and Accounting Hospitality and Tourism Management Human Resource Management Management Information Systems Marketing

BBA Program Mission

The mission of the Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA) program is to provide students with the knowledge, skills and abilities required to serve as effective, responsible, and ethical leaders and managers in the modern workforce of today--anywhere in the world. It prepares graduates for a diverse assortment of careers in the business sector and for graduate studies. The program focuses on decision-making, problem-solving, developing strong ethical values, social responsibility, and working to achieve success in culturally-diverse settings.

Program Goals

The BBA program prepares its graduates to:

- 1. Possess a solid background in business theory and practice.
- 2. Succeed in entry-level business careers, progress in current positions, or pursue advanced learning.
- 3. Develop the necessary skills to function effectively in a global economy.
- 4. Communicate effectively in any setting.
- 5. Make ethical and professional decisions, and practice social responsibility.
- 6. Adopt information technology to develop business solutions.

Program Learning Outcomes

Students who successfully complete the BBA program should:

- 1. Communicate effectively in writing, speaking, and using technology.
- 2. Apply appropriate business theories and practices on the job.
- 3. Practice ethical behavior.
- 4. Use business skills successfully in the workplace.
- 5. Think critically to solve business problems.
- 6. Design information systems to solve business problems.

Hospitality and Tourism

HTM Program Mission

The mission of the Hospitality and Tourism Management (HTM) program is to provide students with the knowledge, skills and abilities required to serve as effective, responsible, and ethical leaders and managers in the modern hospitality and tourism industry of today--anywhere in the world. It prepares graduates for a diverse assortment of careers in the hospitality and tourism sectors and for graduate studies. The program focuses on decision-making, problem-solving, developing strong ethical values, social responsibility, and working to achieve success in culturally-diverse settings.

Program Goals

The HTM program prepares its graduates to:

- 1. Possess a solid background in hospitality and tourism theory and practice.
- 2. Succeed in entry-level hospitality and tourism careers, progress incurrent positions, or pursue advanced learning.
- 3. Develop the necessary skills to function effectively in a global economy.
- 4. Communicate effectively in any setting.
- 5. Make ethical and professional decisions, and practice social responsibility.

Program Learning Outcomes

Students who successfully complete the HTM program should:

- 1. Communicate effectively in writing, speaking, and using technology.
- 2. Apply appropriate hospitality and tourism theories and practices on the job.
- 3. Practice ethical behavior within a hospitality and tourism management context.
- 4. Use hospitality and tourism management skills successfully in the workplace.
- 5. Think critically to solve hospitality and tourism management problems.

Master of Business Administration

CUCA offers a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree with five specializations. All information relating to the MBA degree is published separately in the *MBA Program Guide*.

Degree Programs in Arabic Language

CUCA offers one master's and three bachelor's degrees in Arabic:

- Master of Law
- Bachelor of Law
- Bachelor of Human Resource Management
- Bachelor of Public Relations and Advertising

All information relating to degree programs conducted in Arabic is published separately in the Arabic Language *College Catalog.*.

Program Requirements

<u>COMPONENTS</u>	CREDIT HOURS
General Education Courses Information Technology Mathematics Science Social Science Humanities, Language, and Other	3 3 3 6 15
General Education Total:	30
Core Courses:	54
Specialization Courses:	36
Total Requirement:	120 Credit Hours

Curriculum

1. General Education Courses (30 Credit Hours)

COURSE CODE	COURSE NAME	CREDITS	ACADEMIC CATEGORY		
CIS 101	Computer Fundamentals	3	Information Technology		
MTH 101	College Mathematics	3	Mathematics		
ENV 201	Environmental Science	3	Sciences		
SOC 101	Introduction to Sociology	3	Social Sciences		
ENG 101	English I	3			
ENG 102	English II	3			
HUM 101	Critical Thinking	3	Humanities, Languages, and		
REL 201	Islamic Studies	3	Other		
SSS 101	Study Skills	3			
UAE 201	UAE Studies	es 3			
Total Gene	eral Education Credit Hours	30			

2. Core Courses (54 Credit Hours)

COURSI	E CODE	COURSE NAME		CREDIT HOURS
ACC	101	Accounting I		3
ACC	202	Managerial Accounting		3
BUS	101	Introduction to Business		3
BUS	102	Business Statistics		3
BUS	201	Business Communication		3
BUS	202	Business Ethics		3
BUS	204	Innovation and Entrepreneurship		3
BUS	301	Business Research Methods		3
BUS	302	Business Law		3
BUS	401	Business Policy and Strategy		3
ECO	201	Microeconomics		3
ECO	202	Macroeconomics		3
FIN	301	Financial Management		3
MGT	302	Management and Organizational Behavior		3
MGT	303	Management Information Systems		3
MGT	304	International Management		3
MGT	402	Operations Management		3
MKT	302	Principles of Marketing		3
			TOTAL	54

3. Specialization Courses (36 Credit Hours)

Finance and Accounting

		5	
	e Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
ACC	301	Cost Accounting	3
ACC	302	Intermediate Accounting	3
ACC	303	Accounting Information Systems	3
ACC	304	International Accounting	3
ACC	401	Taxation (Elective)	INACTIVE
ACC	402	Governmental Accounting (Elective)	3
ACC	403	Auditing	3
FIN	302	Financial Institutions	3
FIN	306	Business Finance (Elective)	3
FIN	402	Corporate Finance	3
FIN	404	Banking Operations	3
MGT	305	Investment Management	3
MGT	403	Risk Management (Elective)	3
FIN	495	Finance and Accounting Internship	3
FIN	499	Capstone: Financial Statement Analysis	3
		TOTAL	36

Marketing

Course N	lumber	Course Name		Credit Hours
MKT	303	Consumer Behavior		3
MKT	304	Supply Chain Management		3
MKT 3	305	Integrated Marketing Communications		3
MKT (306	Retail Management Elec	tive	3
MKT	307	Sales Management Elec	tive	3
MKT	308	Business-to-Business Marketing Elec	tive	3
MKT	309	Marketing Research		3
MKT (310	Marketing Strategy Elec	tive	3
MKT	401	Direct Marketing Elec	tive	INACTIVE
MKT 4	402	Brand Marketing		3
MKT 4	403	Services Marketing		3
MKT 4	404	International Marketing		3
MKT 4	495	Marketing Internship		3
MKT 4	499	Capstone: Marketing Management		3
			ΓAL	36

Huma	n Resol	urce Management		
Course	Number	Course Name		Credit Hours
HRM	201	Human Resource Management		3
HRM	301	Staffing Organizations		3
HRM	302	Employee Training and Development		3
HRM	303	Career Management	Elective	3
HRM	350	Performance Management and Total Rewards		3
HRM	351	Occupational Safety and Health		3
HRM	352	Quality of Work Life	Elective	3
HRM	402	Employment Law: Theory and Regulations		3
HRM	403	Global Workforce Management		3
HRM	404	Applying Employment Law in the Workplace		3
HRM	410	Leadership and Organization Development		3
HRM	411	Special Topics in HRM I	Elective	INACTIVE
HRM	412	Special Topics in HRM	Elective	3
HRM	495	HRM Internship		3
HRM	499	Capstone: Strategic HRM		3
			TOTAL	36

Management Information Systems

Course Number	Course Name		Credit Hours
MIS 201	Discrete Mathematics		3
MIS 301	Foundations of Databases		3
MIS 302	Foundations of Programming		3
MIS 303	Data Communication for Business		3
MIS 304	Advanced Database Systems		3
MIS 305	Advanced Programming		3
MIS 306	Structured System Analysis and Design		3
MIS 401	Information Systems Project Management		3
MIS 402	Innovation and Emerging Technologies		3
MIS 403	Web Programming for Business		3
MIS 404	Information Resource Management	Elective	INACTIVE
MIS 405	Decision Support Systems	Elective	3
MIS 406	E-Business	Elective	3
MIS 407	Object-Oriented System Analysis and Design	Elective	3
MIS 495	MIS Internship		3
MIS 499	Capstone: Management Information Systems		3
TOTAL			36

Hospitality and Tourism Management

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
HTM 201	Introduction to the Hospitality and Tourism Industry	3
HTM 301	Introduction to Food Production (with Lab)	3
HTM 302	Financial Accounting for the Hospitality Industry	3
HTM 303	Hospitality Facilities Management	3
HTM 310	Tourism Management and Development	3
HTM 311	Food and Beverage Management Elective	3
HTM 350	Hospitality and Tourism Law and Ethics	3
HTM 351	Introduction to Event Management	3
HTM 352	Hospitality Human Resource Management	3
HTM 353	Meeting and Event Management Elective	3
HTM 354	Hospitality and Tourism Marketing	3
HTM 401	Lodging Management Elective	3
HTM 410	Tour Guide Principles Elective	3
HTM 411	Special Topics in Hospitality and Tourism Elective	INACTIVE
HTM 495	HTM Internship	3
HTM 499	Capstone: Strategic Management for Hospitality and Tourism	3
	TOTAL	36

Ch	iche l	Plan		1	Lin	ane	e and Accounting		
		Semester 1					Semester 5		
			CREDIT		_			CREDIT	1
COURS	30003	COURSE NAME	HOURS	PREREQUISITE	COURS	3000	COURSE NAME	HOURS	PREREQUISITE
BUS	101	Introduction to Business	3		8U8	301	Business Research Methods	3	806 100; CIS 101
ENG	101	English I	3		8U8	302	Business Law	3	600 201
MTH	101	College Mathematics	З		FIN	301	Financial Management	3	ACIC 101
800	101	Introduction to Sociology	З		мат	302	Management and Org Behavior	3	800 201
888	101	Study Skills	3		MOT	303	Management Information Systems	3	CG5 101; ECC0 201
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	r1•3	Semester 2			Yea	r3•1	Semester 6		
COURIS	E 0005	COURSE NAME	CREDIT HOURS	PREREQUISITE	COURS	ECODE	COURSE NAME	CREDIT HOURS	PREREQUIRITE
ACC	101	Accounting I	3		ACC	301	Cost Accounting	3	ACIC 202
BUB	102	Business Statistics	3	MTH 101	ACC	302	Intermediate Accounting	3	ACIC 202
CB	101	Computer Fundamentals	3		FIN	302	Financial Institutions	3	FIN 301
ENG	102	English II	З	ENG 101	MOT	304	International Management	3	800.201
HUM	101	Critical Thinking	ы		MOT	305	Investment Management	3	BUS 102; FIN 301
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	r2•3	Semester 3			Yea	r 4 •	Semester 7		
COURS	60006	COURSE NAME	HOURS	PREREQUEITE	COURT	6 0006	COURSE NAME	CREDT HOURS	PREASOUNTE
ACC	202	Managerial Accounting	3	ACC 101	ACC	303	Accounting Information Systems	3	ACC 101
BUS	201	Business Communication	3		ACC	304	International Accounting	3	ACC 222
BUS	202	Business Ethics	3		ACC	402	Governmental Accounting *		ACC 302
ECO	201	Moteconomics	3		FN	306	Business Finance *		FIN 301
REL.	201	Islamic Studies	3		8U8	401	Business Policy and Strategy	3	
RELA	201	Islamic Studies (Arabic)	2		MOT	402	Operations Management	3	9US 102
		Total Credit Hour	s 15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	r2•3	Semester 4			Yea	r 4 •	Semester 8		
COURIS	6005	COURSE NAME	HOURS	PREREQUEITE	COURI	6 0006	COURSE NAME	CREDT HOURS	PREPARA
BUB	204	Innovation and Entrepreneurship	3	BUS 101; ECO 201	ACC	403	Auditing	3	ACIC 302
ECO	202	Macroeconomics	3		FIN	402	Corporate Finance	3	FIN 301
ENV	201	Environmental Science	3		FIN	404	Banking Operations	3	FIN 301
MKT	302	Principles of Marketing	3	ECO 201	FIN	495	Internship	3	90 Credita
UAE	201	UAE Studies	3		CAPI FIN	STONE 499	Financial Statement Analysis	3	ACIC 302; BUS 301; FIN 301
		Total Credit Hour	5 15				Total Credit Hours	15	
* Ek	stive (lourse					Cumulative Credit Hours	120	

NOTES:

Students can finish the BBA program in less time by completing summer courses.

· Students must complete Islamic Studies in either Arabic or English.

Students must select specialization courses from their program major.

The internship is after year three. Students must successfully complete 90 credit hours to qualify for the internship.

The capstone course in all specializations is required for graduation.

Students choose 1 of 2 elective courses.

Note: Risk Management (M97 403) with the prerequisite FIN 301, is INACTIVE.

					-	_			
Stu	idy l	Plan			Ma	rket	ting		
Yea	ir 1 -	Semester 1			Yea	ir 3 -	Semester 5		
COURS	0000	COURSE NAME	CREDIT HOURS	PREPEQUISITE	COURS	6 0006	COURSE NAME	CRIEDIT	89
BUB	101	Introduction to Business	3		BUS	301	Business Research Methods	3	CIS
ENG	101	English I	3		BUS	302	Business Law	3	EC
ИТН	101	College Mathematics	3		FIN	301	Financial Management	3	AC
80C	101	Introduction to Sociology	3		MOT	302	Management & Organizational Behavior	3	EC
888	101	Study Skills	3		MOT	303	Management Information Systems	3	05
		Total Credit Hours	15			+	Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	ur 1 -	Semester 2			Yea	ir 3 -	Semester 6	•	
COURS	10005	COURSE NAME	CREOT HOURS	PREREQUISITE	COURS	60006	COURSE NAME	CREDIT HOURS	P90
ACC	101	Accounting I	з		MOT	304	International Management	3	EC
BU8	102	Business Statistics	3	MTH 101	MKT	303	Consumer Behavior	3	WP
CIS	101	Computer Fundamentals	3		MKT	304	Supply Chain Management	3	U)
ENG	102	English II	3	ENG 101	мкт	305	Integrated Marketing Communication	3	WP
HUM	101	Critical Thinking	3		MKT	306	Retail Management*	3	
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	ir 2 -	Semester 3			Yea	ir 4 -	 Semester 7 		•
COURS	80008	COURSE NAME	CRED T HOURS	PREPERLITE	COURS	6 0006	COURSE MAKE	CREDIT	1990
ACC	202	Managerial Accounting	3	ACC 101	BUS	401	Business Policy and Strategy	3	
sus -	201	Business Communication	m,		MGT	402	Operations Management	3	BU
SUB	202	Business Ethics	3		MKT	307	Sales Management #	_	MP
ECO	201	Microeconomics	З		MKT	308	B-to-B Marketing *	3	MP.
REL	201	Islamic Studies			MKT	300	Marketing Research	3	MP
RELA	201	Islamic Studies (Arabic)	4		MKT	310	Marketing Strategy #	3	MK
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	ir 2 -	Semester 4			Yea	ir 4 -	 Semester 8 		
COURS	0005	COURSE NAME	CREDIT HOURS	PREPARALISITE	COURS	6 0006	COURSE NAME	CASDIT HOURS	1965
8U8	204	Innovation and Entrepreneurship	3	BUS 101; ECO 201	MKT	402	Brand Marketing	3	MK
ECO	202	Macroeconomics	3		MKT	403	Services Marketing	3	UP
ENV	201	Environmental Science	3		MKT	404	International Marketing	3	UP
MKT	302	Principles of Marketing	3	ECO 201	MKT	495	Marketing Internship	3	90 I MK
UAE	201	UAE Studies	3		CAPSI MKT	ONE 499	Marketing Management	3	M
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
* Ele	ctive (Course					Cumulative Credit Hours	120	

NOTES:

Students can finish the BBA program in less time by completing summer courses.

Students must complete Islamic Studies in either Arabic or English.

· Students must select specialization courses from their program major.

. The internship is after year three. Students must successfully complete 90 credit hours to qualify for the internship.

• The capstone course in all specializations is required for graduation.

· Students choose 3 of 4 elective courses.

Stu	dy P	lan			Hur	nan	Resource Management		
		Semester 1					Semester 5		
COURSE		COURSE MARE	096.001	Picks 2, 1915	COURSE		COURSE MARK	CHECKT	Mars and
BUS	101	Introduction to Business	HOURS 3		BUB	301	Business Research Methods	3	CIS 101;
ING	101	English I	3		BUB	302	Business Law	3	BUS 102 ECO 201
ИТН	101	College Mathematics	-		FIN	301	Financial Management	-	ACC 10
BOC	101	Introduction to Sociology	3		_	302	Menagement and Organizational Behavior	3	ECO 201
888	101	Study Skills	3		мөт	303	Management Information Systems	3	CIS 101; ECO 201
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Year	r 1 - S	Semester 2			Yea	13-0	Semester 6		
0.86	0006	COURCE MANE		PREASOURTS	00000	0006	COURCE MANE	CORGIT HOURS	PERSONAL
ACC	101	Accounting I	3		HRM	301	Stating Organizations	3	HRM 20
BUS	102	Business Statistics	3	MTH 101	HRM	302	Employee Training and Development	3	HRM 20
C18	101	Computer Fundamentals	3		HRM	303	Career Management *		HRM 20
ENG	102	English II	З	ENG 101	HRM	352	Quality of Work Life *	- 5	HRM 20
HUM	101	Critical Thinking	3		мэт	304	International Management	з	ECO 20
		Total Credit Hours	15		MKT	302	Principles of Marketing	3	ECO 20
						-	Total Credit Hours	15	
Year	2-3	Semester 3			Yea	r 4 •)	Semester 7		
DURDE	0006	COURSE MINE		P6862/815	COURSE	C008	COLRIS MAN		PERSONS
NCC	262	Managerial Accounting	3	ACC 101	BUS	401	Business Policy and Strategy	3	
8U8	201	Business Communication	m		HRM	350	Performance Management & Total Rewards	m	HFM 201
808	202	Business Ethics	- 11		HRM	351	Occupational Safety and Health	- 11	HFM 201
ECO	201	Microeconomics	з		HRM	402	Employment Law: Theory & Regulation	з	BUB 302; HIM 201
REL	201	Islamic Studies	3		HEM	403	Global Workforce Management	з	HIM 201; MGT 304
RELA	201	Islamic Studies (Arabic)	-		HRM	411	Special Topics in HRM *	3	HFM 30
	-	Total Credit Hours	15			-	Total Credit Hours	15	Ì
Year	r 2 - S	Semester 4			Yea	r 4 -)	Semester 8		
201906	0006	COURSE MADE	COB COT HOURS	Pessourans	COURSE	0005	COURSE NAME	CORRECT HOURS	Massours
BUB	204	Innovation and Entrepreneurship	з	BUS 101; ECO 201	HRM	404	Applying Employment Law in the Workplace	з	HRM 40
00	202	Macroeconomics	3		HRM	410	Leadership and Org Development	3	HRM 35
ENV	201	Environmental Science	3		МЭТ	402	Operations Management	3	BU8 10
HRM	201	Human Resource Management	^m	BUS 101	HRM	495	HRM Internship	^m	90 Credit
JAE	201	UAE Studies	3		CAPE	499	Strategic HRM	3	HIM 301 350; 351
		Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
* Ele	ctive C	ourse					Cumulative Credit Hours	120	

NOTES:

Students can finish the SBA program in less time by completing summer courses.
Students must complete Islamic Studies in either Anabic or English.
Students must exist specialization courses from their programmajor.
The internship is after year time. Students must successfully complete XI credit hours to quality for the internship.
The capatone course in all specializations is required forgraduation.
Students choose 1 of 3 elective courses.

Stu	dy P	lan			Ma	nage	ement Information System	ms	
Yea	11.	Semester 1	0.5000		Yea	13.	Semester 5		
COURSE	0006	CORE NAME	CORNEL HOURS	PREFECTION	COLING	0006	COURSE NOME	CREAT HOURS	PREFERENCE
BUS	101	Introduction to Business	3		BUS	301	Business Research Methods	3	CIS 101; BUS 102
ENG	101	English I	3		MGT	302	Management & Organizational Behavior	3	ECO 201
мтн	101	College Mathematics	3		мөт	303	Management Information Systems	3	CIS 101; ECO 201
soc	101	Introduction to Sociology	3		MIS	201	Discrete Mathematics	3	MTH 101
888	101	Study Skills	3		MKT	302	Principles of Marketing	3	ECO 201
35		Total Credit Hours	15		10	1.16	Total Credit Hours	15	and services
Yea	11.	Semester 2			Yea	13.	Semester 6		
COURSE	0005	COLINE NAME	CREAT ACURS	PROPERTY	course	0006	COURSE KANE	Decit:	PERSONAL
ACC	101	Accounting I	3		BUS	302	Business Lew	3	ECO 201
BUS	102	Business Statistics	3	MTH 101	MOT	304	International Management	3	ECO 201
CIS	101	Computer Fundamentals	3		MIS	301	Foundations of Databases	3	CIS 101; MOT 303
ENG	102	English II	3	ENG 101	MIS	302	Foundations of Programming	3	MI8 201
HUM	101	Critical Thinking	3		MIS	303	Data Communication for Business	3	MGT 303
37		Total Credit Hours	15		100		Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	12.	Semester 3	10.00		Yea	.4.	Semester 7	0.62260	
COURCE	_	COURSE MAN	12600	PREFECTION	03.88	_	COURSE X SHE	ORIGINA STREET	MEREQUEITE.
ACC	202	Managerial Accounting	3	ACC 101	BUS	401	Business Policy and Strategy	3	
BUS	201	Business Communication	3		MOT	402	Operations Management	3	BUS 102
BUS	202	Business Ethics	3		MIS	304	Advanced Databases Systems	3	MI8 301
ECO	201	Microeconomics	3		MIS	305	Advanced Programming	3	MIS 302
REL	201	Islamic Studies	3		MIS	305	Structured System Analysis & Design	3	MIS 301
RELA	201	Islamic Studies (Arabic)	-	2	100	3 - 3			
	0.000	Total Credit Hours	15				Total Credit Hours	15	
Yea	12.	Semester 4			Yea	+4 -	Semester 8		
COLING	0008	DOURCE MAN	12607	PROVIDENTE	CO.8.8	-	COURSE KINE	CORE NO.	Managaran
BUB	204	Innovation and Entrepreneurship	3	BUS 101 500 201	MIS	401	Information Systems Project Management	3	MIS 301 MIS 302
ECO	202	Macroeconomics	3	10000	MIS	402	Innovation & Emerging Technologies	3	MIS 304
ENV	201	Environmental Science	3		MIS	403	Web Programming for Business *		MIS 304
FIN	301	Financial Management	3	ACC 101	MIS	404	Information Resource Management *	3	MIB 304
UAE	201	UAE Studies	3		MIS	405	E-Business *	-	MIS 304
			-		MIS	407	Object Oriented Bys Analysis & Design +		MIS 305
		Total Credit Hours	15		MIS	495	MIS Internship	3	XI Credit Hours; MIS 304; MIS 30
* B	ective	Course			MIS	499	MIS Capstone	3	SE Credit Hours MIS 304; MIS 30
NOTE	8						Total Credit Hours		Mary Sectors
							Cumulative Credit Hours	120	

Students can finish the BBA program in less time by completing summer courses.
Students must complete interior Studes in either Arabic or English.
Students must select specialization courses from their programmajor.
The Internahip is after year time. Students must successfully complete 90 credit hours to qualify for the Internahip.
The capations course in all specializations is required for graduation.
Students choose 1 of 3 elective courses.

Catalog Course Descriptions

For each course description, there is a *Course Code, Course Name, and Credit Hours,* followed by a series of three numbers in parentheses (0-0:0). The first digit indicates the number of credits; the second digit shows the laboratory or studio hours per week; and the third digit is the total number of hours per week for that course.

Course Level Designations

Each degree program offered at CUCA was designed to provide a logical and sensible course of study. The coursework for all undergraduate programs follows a sequential pattern from 100 to 200, then 300 and through to the 400 level. Typically, these course levels mean the following:

000 Level Course Designation

Courses that prepare students for successful college entry and performance in college courses. These are often referred to as *foundation* courses.

100 Level Course Designation

Courses that define the basic knowledge, concepts, and essential terminology of a discipline. These are usually courses with no prerequisites, or sometimes *survey* courses that bear no academic credit.

200 Level Course Designation

Courses of intermediate university-level difficulty; courses at the 100-Level are usually prerequisites.

300 Level Course Designation

Courses of advanced university-level difficulty. Upper Division students (junior and senior year) take these courses. Many are specialization-specific and have been designed for those who are qualified in the subject.

400 Level Course Designation

Advanced courses and/or seminars, tutorials and special courses for majors and upperdivision students.

Master's Degree Program courses are offered at the 500- and 600-Levels:

500 Level Course Designation

Courses that assume bachelor's degree level competency with the subject and that typically serve as the core for graduate programs and are the foundation for more advanced and focused study.

600 Level Course Designation

Courses at a more advanced Master's level where students explore focused and specialized topics in the discipline

11. Course Descriptions

11.1 General Education Courses

CIS 101: Computer Fundamentals

Prerequisite: None This course offers students expo

This course offers students exposure to basic personal computer operation and commonly-used programs. Included is familiarization with and practical use of word processing, spreadsheet, database, presentation, network, and internet software.

ENG 101: English I

Prerequisite: None

This course focuses on writing as a recurring process for generating meaning as well as communicating effectively. Students practice paragraph and essay writing in different genres and explore how writers can achieve focus and coherence, support their claims with evidence, and proofread and edit their work

ENG 102: English II

Prerequisite: ENG 101 This course prepares and familiarizes students with the principles of clear, concise writing in a technical environment for specific discourse communities. Technical writing conventions such as headings, illustrations, style, and tone in the writing of a variety of letters, emails and reports will be considered.

ENV 201: Environmental Science

Prerequisite: None This interdisciplinary approach to our world emphasizes the history of environmental concerns, species interaction (both with each other and their environment), air, water, soil and biological resources, population dynamics, toxicology, energy sources, land use management, and other related topics. Basic principles of science are incorporated throughout the course.

HUM 101: Critical Thinking

Prerequisite: None

This course explores the process of thinking critically and helps students think more clearly, insightfully, and effectively. Relevant examples drawn from student experiences and contemporary situations help students develop the abilities to solve problems, analyze issues, and make informed decisions in their academic, career, and personal lives. The course includes substantive readings, structured writing assignments, and ongoing discussions designed to help students develop language skills while fostering sophisticated thinking abilities.

Credit Hours: (2-2:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

MTH 101: College Mathematics Prerequisite: None

This course provides a sound, intuitive understanding of the basic concepts students need as they pursue careers in business, economics, plus life and social sciences. It includes a brief review of intermediate functions, graphs, algebra, equations and inequalities, exponential and logarithmic functions, linear and non-linear systems, graphing of conic sections, along with single variable calculus, which includes: limits, continuity, derivatives, and applications of derivatives as well as indefinite and definite integrals and some applications.

REL 201: Islamic Studies

Prerequisite: None

The Islamic Studies course introduces Islam in a manner that enables students to relate it to their lives and society at large. The pillars of *Eeman* and Islam are taught with a view to explain what Islam stands for as a code of life. The culture of Islam is explained in a comparative way with other cultures. The course begins with the basics of Islam. The main teachings of Islam are imparted with a modern outlook, relating it to the current world and its challenges. It shows the great role of Islamic civilization on humanity. The course is taught with a view to provide solutions to existing problems in the light of Islam.

SOC 101: Introduction to Sociology Prerequisite: None

This course is an introduction to the study of people and their interaction with each other, the environment, and various social groups. Students develop awareness of the relationship between individual beliefs, attitudes, and behaviors, plus the greater society and culture. They will also learn how to apply sociological concepts to current issues that affect individuals, modern society, and the international community.

SSS 101: Study Skills

Prerequisite: None

This course equips students with the study skills needed for success in their undergraduate studies. It is also useful for acquiring skills that can be used in their personal lives as well as in the workplace. Students learn several techniques they can use in the areas of communication, research practices, teamwork, computer literacy, creativity, critical thinking, presentation skills, and overall literacy.

UAE 201: UAE Studies Prerequisite: None

This course presents the foundations of United Arab Emirates society with special emphasis on the historical, social, economic, political, and cultural aspects.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Catalog

11.2 BBA Core Courses

ACC 101: Accounting I

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: None

The significance of accounting and the challenges it presents. Extensive coverage and review of major concepts followed by practical exercises.

ACC 202: Managerial Accounting

Prerequisite: ACC 101

The course will provide a study of the role of the management accountant in the preparation, analysis, and interpretation of accounting and financial data for business management purposes.

BUS 101: Introduction to Business Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: None Provides first-year students with an understanding of business systems and guides them to the field of business, including business organization, operation, and

BUS 102: Business Statistics

Prerequisite: MTH 101

management.

This course introduces students to statistical analysis and how it relates to business decision making. Students will learn how to apply statistical tools for the collection, presentation, description, analysis and interpretation of data in business contexts. Topics covered include variables, levels of measurements, basic survey design, descriptive measures, probability analysis, sampling and hypothesis testing, correlation, regression analysis, and time-series forecasting. The course includes theoretical and practical lectures.

BUS 201: Business Communication

Prerequisite: None

The primary forms of communication used in business organizations today. A variety of strategies along with some of the technologies which support effective business communication.

BUS 202: Business Ethics

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: None

Traditional ethical theories and how they apply to business. The course provides an understanding of how ethical issues in business arise, and some strategies to control or resolve them.

BUS 204: Innovation and Entrepreneurship Prerequisite: BUS 101; ECO 201

In this course, students explore the key theories and research on entrepreneurship and innovation, and then examine their application in the broader and contemporary context. This includes corporate and public services, emerging technologies and economies, sustainability and development, and creating and capturing value from entrepreneurship and innovation. Readings, case studies, and discussions help organize the course material with clear and essential links between entrepreneurship and innovation. Finally, students will develop a comprehensive business plan.

BUS 301: Business Research Methods Prerequisite: BUS 102; CIS 101; ECO 201

The course is designed to introduce the business research process where students learn to understand managerial problems and formulate research questions and hypotheses. Students gain insight into choosing the right research design, construction of research instruments, sampling, both qualitative and quantitative data collection, data analysis, and report presentation.

BUS 302: Business Law

Prerequisite: ECO 201 This course introduces the ethics and legal framework of business. Emphasis is placed on contracts, negotiable instruments, and how court systems operate. Students learn ways to apply ethical issues and laws covered to selected business decision-making situations.

BUS 401: Business Policy and Strategy

Prerequisite: None

The course offers the most recent theories and current practices in strategic management. The development and implementation of strategies in various areas of business activity such as finance, sourcing, production, human resource management, marketing, and international business.

ECO 201: Microeconomics

Prerequisite: None

An introduction to the analysis of the principles and problems at the microeconomic level. This course elaborates on the theories of demand and supply along with the various types of elasticity. It discusses the costs of production and the profit maximization for an individual firm under varying degrees of competition, pricing, and the deployment of resources.

ECO 202: Macroeconomics

Prerequisite: None

Students will gain an understanding of the analysis of principles and problems at the macroeconomic level. The course examines the public and private sectors, national income, unemployment, inflation, income distribution, and fiscal and monetary policies as they relate to the economy.

Catalog

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

FIN 301: Financial Management Prerequisite: ECO 201

Introduces the tools and concepts employed in financial management for individuals. Topics include analysis of investment alternatives, tax minimization strategies, tax shelters, risk analysis, employee benefits, retirement and estate planning.

MGT 302: Management and Organizational Behavior Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: ECO 201

An overview of the major functions of management. Emphasis on planning, organizing, staffing, leading, and controlling. It provides balanced coverage of all the key elements comprising the discipline of Organizational Behavior in a style that students will find both informative and interesting

MGT 303: Management Information Systems Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: CIS 101; ECO 201

The course provides an overview of Management Information Systems (MIS) in business. It provides students with a framework for the uses information technology in business. Topics include MIS concepts, software, databases, information systems (IS), the strategic use of IS, the development of IS, and social and ethical issues associated with MIS.

MGT 304: International Management

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prereguisite: ECO 201

The activities of globalizing companies, including resource development, overseas operations and management, international management styles, and global strategies. Emphasis on theoretical analysis, with particular focus given to in-depth case study analyses of international strategies.

MGT 402: Operations Management

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: BUS 102

This course Introduces students to the dynamic field of Operations Management. Converting inputs into outputs through established processes. The principles of management are key factors along with concepts of distribution, project management, quality assurance, and lean manufacturing. Includes several practical exercises to enhance skills.

MKT 302 Principles of Marketing Prerequisite: BUS 101

The relationship between the firm and its customers and the other members of the distribution channel. The marketing functions of an organization, environmental factors influencing marketing decisions, the discovery of market opportunities, development of marketing strategy and marketing programs.

11.3 BBA Specialization Courses

Major in Finance and Accounting

ACC 301: Cost Accounting

Prerequisite: ACC 101 This course will cover the procedures and principles of cost accounting with emphasis on gathering and reporting cost accounting information for purposes of accurate financial reporting. Students will analyze cost accounting information to aid in managerial decision making.

ACC 302: Intermediate Accounting

Prerequisite: ACC 101 One of the goals of the intermediate accounting course is to orient students to the application of accounting principles and techniques in practice. It provides coverage of the principles and structure of finacial accounting statements and financial disclosures. Topics include cash, receivables, inventory, property, depreciation, intangible assets, and long-term liabilities.

ACC 303: Accounting Information Systems Prerequisite: ACC 101

Many traditional accounting functions are now embodied in systems that require a different combination of technical and financial knowledge. The AIS course is designed to provide this combination of knowledge and skill sets to meet the new challenges and opportunities of the information technology world. This course explains the application of computer technology in the design, implementation and operation of accounting tools, the actual processing of accounting transactions, and the application of these systems to the accounting cycle.

ACC 304: International Accounting

Prerequisite: ACC 101

This course discusses the international dimensions of accounting vital for anyone doing business or investing internationally. Topics such as comparative accounting, foreign currency translation, accounting for inflation, and international financial reporting standards are discussed.

ACC 401: Taxation

Revised: 1 September 2016

Prerequisite: ACC 101

This course provides an overview of the tax system in the United States with comparisons to selected systems in other parts of the world. Students explore the basics of business and individual taxes, government entities, and their administration of taxation laws.

ACC 402: Governmental Accounting Prerequisite: ACC 101

The goal of this course is to provide a broad range of information about governmental accounting and financial reporting that is used. The course deals with fund accounting which is the basic model used for internal accounting and for part of the external reporting for governments.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

ACC 403: Auditing

Prerequisite: ACC 101

This course presents auditing concepts and procedures. It provides students with a clear perspective of the current auditing environment and discusses the challenges inherent in the auditing practice, and how the auditor can live up to the expectations of the profession.

FIN 302: Financial Institutions Prerequisite: FIN 301 This course will examine the th

This course will examine the theory of financial intermediation in the context of banks, savings and loans, public and private insurance companies, and investment banking.

FIN 306: Business Finance

Prerequisite: FIN 301

This course provides an overview of the business finance field, financial environment, present value concepts and calculations, common stocks, investment decisions with present value rules, analysis of financial statements, risk, return and opportunity cost, capital budgeting and risks, the time value of money, bond and stock valuations, and financial planning. Practical case studies are also used.

FIN 402: Corporate Finance

Prerequisite: FIN 301

The course will offer students the opportunity to analyze financial decisions involving investment in capital assets and the selection of internal and external sources of long-term funds.

FIN 404: Banking Operations

Prerequisite: FIN 301 This course explores the multitude of aspects in bank operations and includes detailed coverage of organization, structure, transactions, funds management, banking services, and loan processes.

FIN 495: Internship

Prerequisite: FIN 301; 90 Credit Hours of Coursework

This course offers students the chance to gain firsthand experience in an actual workplace environment. It also provides students with the opportunity to apply their academic knowledge to practical work situations. It introduces and exposes students to the differences between obligations and responsibilities in their personal lives and those found in the working world.

FIN 499: Financial Statement Analysis (Capstone)Credit Hours: (3-0:3)Prerequisite: FIN 301

This is a capstone course. It will provide students with a fundamental understanding of how to interpret accounting data presented in financial statements. It will demonstrate popular tools and techniques in analyzing and interpreting financial statements. Moreover, basic concepts and conventions on the construction of financial will be briefly viewed. Students are expected to complete a capstone paper that covers most accounting and finance concepts.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

MGT 305: Investment Management Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: FIN 301 The course will emphasize risks, returns, and the investment process. Students will evaluate alternative investment instruments, investment environments, introduction to analysis and valuation techniques, and an introduction to portfolio management.

MGT 403: Risk Management

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: None

An overview of the many aspects involved in financial risk management. Emphasis is on the practical elements which are applied in the modern business environment.

Revised: 1 September 2016

Major in Marketing

MKT 303: Consumer Behavior

Prerequisite: MKT 302

Students in this course look at the consumer functions of decision-making, attitude formation and change, cognition, perception, and learning. The marketing concepts of product positioning, segmentation, brand loyalty, shopping preference and diffusion of innovations are considered in context with the environmental, ethical, multicultural and social influences on an increasingly diverse global consumer.

MKT 304: Supply Chain Management

Prerequisite: MKT 302

The goal of this course is not only to cover high-level supply chain strategy and concepts, but also to give students a solid understanding of the analytical tools necessary to solve supply chain problems. It also develops an understanding of key areas and their interrelationships, namely the strategic role of the supply chain, key strategic drivers of supply chain performance, and methodologies used to analyze supply chains.

MKT 305: Integrated Marketing Communications Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: MKT 302

This course aims to equip students understand the important tools of the promotional mix such as advertising, direct marketing, sales promotion, publicity and public relations, personal selling, and interactive internet marketing. It also helps them see why organizations try to position their brand firmly in the minds of the target market to achieve desired results.

MKT 306: Retail Management

Prerequisite: MKT 302

In this era of multi product super markets, learning principles of retailing and effectively utilizing them has become imperative. The spirit behind the course is to make the student understand this important element in the overall marketing mix of mass distributed products. Again this course will highlight the importance of administration and strategic planning in both large and small retail firms. It concentrates on the management of retail functions to include stock planning, inventory control, markup and pricing, retail accounting, merchandising, retail promotion, human resource management, store location, design and layout, legal and ethical issues, and the use of information systems.

MKT 307: Sales Management

Prerequisite: MKT 302

This course examines the elements of an effective sales force as a key component of an organization's total marketing effort. Course objectives include understanding the sales process, the relationship between sales and marketing, sales force structure, customer relationship management (CRM), and issues in recruiting, selecting, training, motivating, compensating and retaining the best salespeople.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

MKT 308: Business-to-Business Marketing Prerequisite: MKT 302

An overview of business-to-business marketing with emphasis on marketplace dynamics. Students explore concepts and issues that are common in the presentday marketing environment. Topics include organizational buying behavior, legal and regulatory concerns, target markets, positioning, branding, supply chains, communication, and ethics.

MKT 309: Marketing Research

Prerequisite: MKT 302

The primary objective of this course is to provide students with tools to undertake and critically evaluate marketing research projects. Students use a hands-on approach to explore both qualitative and quantitative marketing-research tools, and evaluate the results obtained.

MKT 310: Marketing Strategy Prerequisite: MKT 302

This course aims to teach students how to design a marketing strategy by understanding the nature and structure of the market, analyzing the internal and external environmental factors and by applying SWOT analysis. This course also focuses on the importance of marketing mixes, the product life cycle, and its role in formulating and designing an accurate marketing strategy.

MKT 401: Direct Marketing

Prerequisite: MKT 302

This course introduces students to the scope of direct marketing including mail order, lead generation, circulation, loyalty programs, store traffic building, fund raising, preselling, post-selling and research. It also includes grounding in all major direct marketing media: direct mail, broadcast, print advertising, catalogs, co-ops, telemarketing, inserts, and videos. The measurability and accountability of direct marketing and its relationship to the total marketing mix are also stressed.

MKT 402: Brand Marketing

Prerequisite: MKT 302

Students learn how marketing professionals use brand names, identities, and recognition to result in sales. The course includes historical and regional examples of brand marketing.

MKT 403: Services Marketing

Prerequisite: MKT 302

Unique challenges are associated with marketing services to develop management-level skills for marketing a service business including marketing research applications, marketing planning and customer satisfaction. Service industries contribute to the GDPs of many countries and provide career opportunities for people around the world. This course enables students to understand how marketing services is different from marketing goods. It helps them make decisions about positioning, distribution, pricing, and promoting different services with the help of the marketing mix in a growing competitive service industry. It covers service organizations like banking, transportation, airlines, hotels, insurance, and other government and non-government service organizations.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

91

MKT 404: International Marketing

Prerequisite: MKT 302

This course dwells on the applications of marketing theory in the field of international market context. The emergence of global markets requires students to understand factors influencing marketing strategies in global markets. This course aims at empowering students to understand and analyze international marketing contexts in a rational manner and help them make decisions to tap into international market opportunities

MKT 495: Internship

Prerequisite: MKT 302; 90 Credit Hours of Coursework

This course offers students the chance to gain firsthand experience in an actual workplace environment. It also provides students with the opportunity to apply their academic knowledge to practical work situations. It introduces and exposes students to the differences between obligations and responsibilities in their personal lives and those found in the working world.

MKT 499: Marketing Management (Capstone) Prerequisite: MKT 302

This is a capstone course. Students will use a practical, systematic approach to developing a sound marketing plan as they consider the business mission, situation analysis, strategy formulation, the development and implementation of product, pricing, communication, and distribution policies. At the end of this course, students are expected to prepare a research project applying scientific research methodology.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Major in Human Resource Management

HRM 201: Human Resource Management Prerequisite: BUS 101

This course focuses on the role of Human Resource Management and how it contributes to the organization's success. The important feature of this course is to specify the areas of contact between operating managers and the HR unit. Managing diversity, equal employment opportunity, job analyses, recruiting, training, compensation, and employee health, safety, and security are all demonstrated in this course. It also links the most important concepts with case analysis.

HRM 301: Staffing Organizations

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: HRM 201

This course provides a comprehensive staffing model. Components include staffing models and strategy, staffing support systems such as legal compliance and job analysis, core staffing systems such as recruitment, selection, and placement. Students will have the opportunity to practice in key staffing activities and decision making and greater opportunity for in-depth analysis and skill building.

HRM 302: Employee Training and Development Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HRM 201

Successful training efforts relate to all business goals and strategies. This course gives students a strategic perspective about training and how it relates to the organization. It also provides students with a solid background in the fundamentals of training and development such as needs assessment, transfer of training, learning environment design, methods, and evaluation.

HRM 303: Career Management

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: HRM 201

This course focuses on the essential views of careers and career management. The model of career management presents the active problem-solving approach to work life and how people can collect information, gain insights into themselves and their environment, and develop appropriate goals and strategies to obtain useful feedback regarding their efforts. Topics in this course include career context and stages, models, applications, occupations, job stress, and career strategic planning.

HRM 350: Performance Management and Total Rewards Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HRM 201

This course introduces a comprehensive approach to performance management and total rewards. Students learn the performance management process step-by-step and design, develop, and implement the process including total rewards and benefit systems to attract and retain talented employees. Topics in this course include performance management contributions, strategic planning measures, implementing performance management systems, skills, reward systems, pay models, compensation systems, incentives, benefits, and legal issues.

HRM 351: Occupational Safety and Health Prerequisite: HRM 201

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

This course provides practical information regarding technology, management, and regulatory compliance issues, covering crucial topics like organizing, staffing, directing, and evaluating occupational safety programs and procedures. Students will learn how to comply with safety-related laws according to the UAE Civil Defense policies and procedures. Finally, students learn the risk factors that contribute to workplace violence, hazardous materials, construction, and transportation safety.

HRM 352: Quality of Work Life

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: HRM 201

This course focuses on the work environment and work climate that are vital to businesses. Management cannot expect high guality and productivity if the work environment is not also of a high standard. This is one dimension of work life quality that affects the quality of human capital. The wellness of our people is a moral obligation and the dignity and needs of the workforce demand excellence in total care, occupational safety, and human resource development.

HRM 402: Employment Law: Theory and Regulations Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: BUS 302, HRM 201

This course focuses on the laws that govern the relationship between employers and employees in the workplace. Students will learn how the status of an employer or employee influences the rights and obligations of each. Students will also analyze case law, legislation, and legal systems that have evolved to combat social injustice in the workplace. By reading the textbook, case studies, and written assignments, students will tackle various issues facing employers and employees in the workplace. Topics include; the regulation of employment, employee's right to privacy, labor law, the regulation of discrimination in employment, and more.

HRM 403: Global Workforce Management

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: HRM 201, MGT 304

This course provides the concepts, tools, and techniques that are needed to effectively manage an internationally diverse workforce. It also focuses on the roles and activities of the HR department in managing a global workforce. Students explore ways to manage the cultural and ethnic differences that occur as a result of international global diversity.

HRM 404: Applying Employment Law in the Workplace Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HRM 402

This course focuses on the laws that govern the relationship between employers and employees in the UAE. Students will be introduced to employment and labor laws in the UAE. Students will also develop the skills to analyze both case law and legal systems in the workplace. Topics include: the regulation of employment, employee privacy, UAE labor law, and regulating discrimination in employment, among others.

HRM 410: Leadership and Organization Development Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HRM 350

This course focuses on leadership approaches to the change process to enhance managerial effectiveness in formal organizations. This course also focuses on different perspectives of organization development (OD) to create interpersonal, group, organizational development. Students will learn a wide variety of interventions from those involving basic human processes to those requiring planning at the strategic level and leadership roles.

HRM 411: Special Topics in HRM I

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: HRM 302

This course includes special topics in current developments within the field of human resource management, namely assessing and managing conflict, and negotiation. Students will explore assessing and managing conflict in the workplace. This course will also cover various methods for handling conflict and consider how students might apply them to both hypothetical and real-life conflicts.

HRM 411: Special Topics in HRM II

Prerequisite: HRM 403

This course includes special topics in current developments within the field of human resource management, namely diversity in organizations and legislation. This course focuses on theoretical ideas about diversity in organizations, legislation that affects it, and explores the challenges and opportunities of the increasingly diverse workforce emerging in the world. Students will learn how to develop the necessary skills to work with other people from different backgrounds.

HRM 495: Internship (HRM)

Prerequisite: 90 credit hours of coursework

This course offers students the chance to gain firsthand experience in an actual Human Resource Management workplace environment. It also provides students with the opportunity to apply their academic knowledge to practical work situations. It introduces and exposes students to the differences between the routines of college life and life in the working world.

HRM 499: Capstone-Strategic HRM

Prerequisite: HRM 403

This is a capstone course. Students will be equipped with the skills needed to learn, analyze, and communicate critical HRM strategic activities to senior management. Students will explore concepts, approaches, tools, models, and techniques used to develop effective strategic plans. Topics include; strategic planning, the strategic role of HRM, design and redesign of work systems, and other strategic HRM activities. Students will produce a Strategic HRM research project.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Major in Management Information Systems

MIS 201: Discrete Mathematics

Prerequisite: MTH 101

This course introduces the foundations of discrete mathematics as they apply to computer science, focusing on providing a solid theoretical foundation for further work. Topics include functions, relations, sets, simple proof techniques, Boolean algebra, propositional logic, digital logic, elementary number theory, and the fundamentals of counting.

MIS 301: Foundations of Databases Prerequisite: CIS 101, MGT 303

This course provides an understanding of the functionality of databases and their role in modern business environments. It covers the fundamentals of database architecture, database systems, principles and methodologies of database design, and techniques for database application development. The course also develops an understanding of the processes used to normalize relational databases and the role of the Structured Query Language (SQL) standards in the current and future development of DBMS. Fundamental knowledge of these concepts equips students to effectively deploy a commercial database management system in response to the needs of a business organization.

MIS 302: Foundations of Programming

Credit Hours: (2-2:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: MIS 201

This course covers the fundamental concepts of procedural programming using Java programming language. Topics include data types, control structures, functions, arrays, files, and the mechanics of running, testing, and debugging. The course also offers an introduction to the historical and social context of computing and a snapshot of computer science as a discipline. The course assumes students have no programming background and provides an overview of the program development process in addition to introducing important programming constructs and methodologies.

MIS 303: Data Communication for Business

Prerequisite: MGT 303

This course provides in-depth knowledge of data communication and networking by discussing both theoretical concepts and practical applications. It introduces students to the concepts and terminology of data communications and networking. It includes topics on communication models, network protocols, standards, local area networks (LANs), wide area networks (WANs), the transport communication protocol/Internet protocol (TCP/IP), Internet, intranet, and networking applications. Emphasis is on the analysis and design of networking applications in business.

MIS 304: Advanced Database Systems Prerequisite: MIS 301

This is an advanced course in database management systems emphasizing both the theoretical knowledge and practical skills of database design, database languages, and database implementation. The purpose of this course is to deepen and expand the concepts presented in the Fundamentals of Databases course. In particular, the course focuses on data modeling tools and techniques, advanced database design, complex uses of Structured Query Language (SQL), and database administration. Topics include modern database systems, including object-oriented databases, XML databases, distributed databases, and on-line analytical processing.

MIS 305: Advanced Programming

Prerequisite: MIS 302

This course covers the fundamental concepts of object-oriented (OO) programming using the Java language and emphasizes basic programming skills using hands-on practices for developing business applications. Contents include Java applications, data types, variables, overloading methods, constructors, access control, inheritance, polymorphism, exception handling, use of try-and-catch, multithreaded programming, thread model, Java library, and exploring Java input-output streams.

MIS 306: Structured System Analysis and Design Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: MIS 301

This course introduces information system concepts and the system development process. It emphasizes the development phase of analysis, the application of structured methods, and the use of tools. Analysis, modeling, and design provide an understanding and application of system analysis and design processes. Coverage includes structured systems analysis and design methodologies, functional decomposition, data flow diagram (DFD) approaches, and information modeling. Rapid application development (RAD), prototyping, and visual development tools are also introduced.

MIS 401: Information Systems Project Management Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: MIS 306

Project management skills are essential for Management Information Systems (MIS) practitioners who want to be leaders. This is a comprehensive course in project management for anyone who is serious about planning and managing successful MIS projects. This course combines the knowledge, tools and techniques common to managing successful projects in any field with insight into the special challenges of managing projects in the MIS field. General project management subjects covered include a framework for project management, as well as the key project management knowledge areas: integration, scope, time, cost, quality, human resources, communication, risk, and procurement. The subject provides an overview of the activities involved in an MIS project.

Credit Hours: (2-2:3)

MIS 402: Innovation and Emerging Technologies Prerequisite: MIS 304 Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (2-2:3)

This course explores the impact of emerging, interactive technologies on business and society from social, technical, legal, creative, and entrepreneurial perspectives. The purpose of this course is to enable students to investigate the technologies, methods, and practices of using new innovations for the enterprise. The course introduces students to new technologies and examines how these powerful systems are fundamentally reshaping modern enterprises along with our society. It also provides an overview of the myriad of issues surrounding the introduction of new mobile, collaborative, social networking technologies, and their assimilation into society and commerce.

MIS 403: Web Programming for Business Prerequisite: MIS 304

The Web is currently one of the most popular and useful applications built on top of the Internet using Internet technologies. This course stresses development strategies for managing the rapidly changing information of corporations and organizations for just-in-time distribution. It also covers a variety of software technologies relevant to web design and implementation. Several applied topics are covered in class: programming languages, scripting languages, network programming, client/server computing, security, and multi-media systems design. It introduces a number of modern scripting languages as well as the mechanisms for their use in diverse web applications.

MIS 404: Information Resource Management Prerequisite: MIS 306

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Information technology (IT) has played a key role in driving businesses into "going global." Also, IT is an important supporting tool for many, if not all, applications. However, it is one of the complex, relatively expensive, and fast-changing technologies that require careful management and utilization. This course provides an understanding of the use of information technology from an organizational perspective by focusing on the development of IT policies and plans to achieve organizational goals.

MIS 405: Decision Support Systems Prerequisite: MIS 304

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Decision support systems (DSS) assist the management decision-making process in a business environment. This is a specialized course in management information systems and information technology (MIS/IT) for undergraduates. It is designed to prepare MIS students for a major role in supporting high-quality decisions and developing an effective DSS for the complex and dynamic environment of today's business. Topics include an overview of DSSs, decision theory and organizational systems, and unstructured problem-solving. Introduction to group decision support systems, executive information systems and expert systems will also be discussed.

Catalog

MIS 406: E-Business

Prerequisite: MIS 304

This course is designed to introduce some emerging concepts and practices in the field of on-line commerce via the Internet which are shaping both consumer behaviors and business systems. Theories and applications of Electronic Commerce, e-Cash, e-Banking, e-Tailing, supply chain management, business models, e-Marketing, Internet business opportunities, network security, Internet database interface and cooperative computing will be covered. Essential global issues related to e-Business will be covered such as mobile commerce.

MIS 407: Object-Oriented System Analysis and Design Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: MIS 305

Object-Orientation (OO) is one of the most successful paradigms for the design and implementation of information systems. This course introduces and clarifies the fundamental ideas in and basic concepts associated with OO. This subject describes in detail the processes and related workflow, as well as the people and artifacts involved in the analysis and design of an IS. Domain modeling and analysis modeling are discussed in conjunction with the OO paradigm and the industry-standard Unified Modeling Language (UML).

MIS 495: Internship (MIS)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: 90 credit hours of coursework; MIS 301, 302, 306, 401 The internship is an integral part of the undergraduate program. The main purpose of the internship is to complement the academic courses given in the classroom with on-the-job training in order to develop both the technical and generic skills of students. This internship course is designed to provide students with work experience specifically related to Management Information Systems (MIS). Each student is expected to complete 120 hours of training during the regular working hours of a selected private firm or public organization. The employer should provide a range of duties that will challenge, develop, and enable the student to acquire new practical knowledge to augment their studies in MIS. An MIS faculty member will be assigned as the supervisor of the internship project. The student and employer must agree that the student will work at least 120 hours, which is the minimum for receiving course credit.

MIS 499: Capstone-Management Information Systems Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: INT 497

This course is the capstone for the Bachelor of Business Administration specialization in MIS. In this course, students integrate what they learned in previous courses and get ready for the workplace. The capstone course encompasses and consolidates all of the concepts covered in the MIS curriculum. Students work in teams (under the guidance of an instructor) and are expected to bring knowledge from the BBA/MIS core courses, chosen electives, and their own experience into this course. Students are also expected to apply their knowledge, practice with different tools and use several different techniques to examine a variety of viewpoints, critique readings and other views, to stretch their thinking, and ultimately to learn how to be effective MIS professionals. Oral and written reports are evaluated during and at the completion of the proposal. Teams, with contributions by each individual, present final written reports and final presentations in presence of undergraduate students and faculty.

Major in Hospitality and Tourism Management

HTM 201: Introduction to the Hospitality and Tourism Industry Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: None

This course focuses on hospitality operations while offering a broad, comprehensive foundation of current knowledge about the world's largest industry. Topics include; the hospitality industry and tourism; lodging; restaurants, managed services, and beverages; recreation, theme parks, clubs, and gaming entertainment; and assemblies and event management.

HTM 301: Introduction to Food Production (with Lab) Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HTM 201

This course introduces the contemporary introduction to cooking and food preparation. This course explores the preparation of fresh ingredients and provides information on other relevant topics, such as food history and food science, food safety and sanitation, nutrition, recipes and menus, tools and equipment, knife skills, kitchen staples, dairy products, principles of meat, fish, and vegetable cookery. Students will learn through laboratory-related activities.

HTM 302: Financial Accounting for the Hospitality Industry Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: ACC 202; HTM 201

This course focuses on financial accounting in the hospitality industry. Students will learn how to apply financial accounting concepts to hospitality businesses. Topics will include; branches of accounting, the accounting cycle, financial statements, merchandising, cash control, payroll, receivables, assets, and forms of business organization. Computer software is used to illustrate concepts and provide hands-on experience.

HTM 303: Hospitality Facilities Management

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Prerequisite: HTM 201

This course focuses on operations of hospitality facilities, including operating costs, characteristics of major building systems, and the role and responsibilities of staff and managers and how to work effectively with maintenance department. Topics include: hospitality facilities, specific facility systems, and lodging design.

HTM 310: Tourism Management and Development Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HTM 201

This course explores the major concepts in tourism, what makes tourism possible, and how tourism can become an important factor in the wealth of any nation. Students will learn the evolution and future development of tourism, in addition to the challenges facing tourism managers in this changing environment. Topics will include; tourism today, future of tourism, demand for tourism, transporting the tourism, accommodation and hospitality services, governments and tourism and managing tourism industry.

HTM 311: Food and Beverage Management Prerequisite: HTM 201

This course focuses on the functions of food and beverage management and managing quality. Students will learn the role of food and beverage management in the context of overall catering operations. Topics include: fast food and popular catering, hotels and quality restaurants and functional, industrial, welfare catering and contemporary environmental concerns, such as sourcing, sustainability and responsible farming. Students will use industry standard software solutions for foodservice operations in this course.

HTM 350: Hospitality and Tourism Law and Ethics Prerequisite: BUS 302; HTM 201

This course introduces students to the laws, ethics and regulations that govern businesses and management decisions in the hospitality industry. Students will understand how contracts are made and how hospitality businesses can be effectively managed, taking into consideration the guest's legal rights. Topics covered in this course include; contracts, operations, property management, employee management, insurance, product liability, safety and security.

HTM 351: Introduction to Event Management Prerequisite: HTM 302

This course provides students with an introductory perspective on the nature of events management. Students will learn the necessary skills and professional knowledge needed to succeed in the event industry. Topics will include sports, music, the arts, corporate events, tourism, and other activities found in the public and private sectors.

HTM 352: Hospitality Human Resource Management Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HTM 201

This course provides students with the systematic approach to human resource management in the hospitality industry. Students will discuss and analyze contemporary issues related to human resources in the field of hospitality businesses, in addition to related laws, regulations and policies affecting the workforce in the hospitality industry.

HTM 353: Meeting and Event Management Prerequisite: HTM 351

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

This course presents the elements of business event management and the tools needed to plan, develop, organize, and implement planning meetings and events. Students will develop the skills needed for effective event management. Topics will include: organizers and sponsors of meetings, events, expositions, and conventions, Destination Marketing Organizations, Destination Management Companies, service contractors and international events.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

HTM 354: Hospitality and Tourism Marketing Prerequisite: MKT 302; HTM 310

This course concentrates on managing marketing strategies in hospitality and tourism industry. Students will examine the strategic use of various marketing communication components including promotion, advertising, personal selling, pricing strategy and destination marketing to design and develop brand equity in the hospitality and tourism industry.

HTM 401: Lodging Management Prerequisite: HTM 302

This course explores how the lodging industry and hotels within the industry operate. It covers both small and large hotels and addresses each department, including the front office, sales and marketing, housekeeping, maintenance, and revenue optimization. Students will learn how to manage a hotel front office and better understand the complexity of the entire property.

HTM 410: Tour Guide Principles

Prerequisite: HTM 301: HTM 310 This course aims to equip students in hospitality and tourism management with the necessary knowledge and skills to make the experiences of their guests a memorable one. Students will learn the economy, religion, culture and the geography of the UAE. In addition, students will learn how to develop their interpersonal skills as well as the guiding techniques to get their license of tourism and hospitality.

HTM 411: Special Topics in Hospitality and Tourism Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HTM 310

This course includes special topics in current developments within the field of the hospitality and tourism industry, namely the future trends in tourism and hospitality, and corporate social responsibility (CSR) in the travel and tourism industry. Students will learn the roles played by marketing, social media, and technology in emerging consumer markets and tourism destination. Also students will discuss issues and challenges of implementing CSR and sustainable mobility in tourism destinations, in addition to hospitality information technology.

HTM 495: Internship (HTM)

Prerequisite: 90 Credit Hours

This course offers students the chance to gain firsthand experience in an actual hospitality workplace. The internship work experience will normally be conducted in one of the R Hotel properties as listed in the Internship Agreement. It also provides students with the opportunity to apply their academic knowledge to practical work situations. It introduces and exposes students to the differences between obligations and responsibilities in their personal lives and those found in the working world.

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

Credit Hours: (3-0:3)

102

HTM 499: Strategic Management for Hospitality and Tourism Credit Hours: (3-0:3) Prerequisite: HTM 310

This is a capstone course. Students will be equipped with the skills needed to analyze, develop, implement and evaluate hospitality and tourism strategic activities to senior management. Students will explore concepts, approaches, tools, models, and techniques used to develop effective strategic plans. Topics include: understanding strategy, strategic management in the hospitality and tourism sector, internal and external analysis, strategy context and content, strategy formulation, implementation and evaluation.

12. Foundation Program

1. Overview

CUCA offers a Foundation Program in accordance with the standards and requirements of the Ministry of Education-Higher Education Affairs and its Commission for Academic Accreditation. This program is especially designed for students who have a score of less than 60% on the UAE General Secondary School Certificate.

The program is based on the requirements found in the Ministry of Education document *Foundation Program in Non-Federal Institutions*, August 2009, and supplemented in September 2009.

2. Course of Study

The Foundation Program is designed for delivery in a full-time mode within a twosemester time limit. No extension to this time limit is permitted.

Moreover, students enrolled in the Foundation Program are not yet considered *matriculated*, by Ministry of Education-Higher Education Affairs definition. In other words, they are not qualified for a degree program and cannot register for any credit-bearing courses at CUCA until they successfully complete all Foundation courses.

3. Admission Requirements

Students who have a score of less than 60% on the General Secondary School Certificate are required to enter the Foundation Program prior to enrolling in an academic degree program at the college or university level.

4. Program Courses

CUCA offers the following courses designed to help students continue their studies and enter higher education:

- Arabic Communications
- English Communications
- General Study Skills
- Information Technology
- Mathematics

5. Fee Structure

REQUIRED COURSES	TOTAL HOURS FOR EACH COURSE		TUITION FEES
Arabic Communications	3		AED 750 per hour
English Communications II	3		AED 750 per hour
General Study Skills	3		AED 750 per hour
Information Technology	3		AED 750 per hour
Mathematics	3		AED 750 per hour
English Communications I	9		AED 4,000
Total Program Hours:	24		
Total Tuition Fees:	<u>AE</u> D 11,250	If a student registers for English Communication I	
	AED 13,000 If a student r		egisters for English Communication II